
NOTICE OF A MEETING 

COMMISSION MEETING 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 
COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

TOWN HALL 

Thursday, October 13, 2022 
1:30 p.m. 

Remote Option 
To join by video and see any screen sharing, click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” below. You do 
not need to have Microsoft Teams for the link to work. 

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting 
Meeting ID: 298 771 202 211  
Passcode: sDtFvT  

To participate by phone, use the conference call information below. 

+1 614-362-3056 United States, Columbus
(888) 596-2819 United States (Toll-free)
Phone Conference ID: 167 414 899#

AGENDA - REVISED 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Welcome and Introductions – Erik Janas (Franklin County), MORPC
Chair

• Recognition of Guests and New Members – Eileen Leuby, MORPC
Membership Services Officer

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive
Director

• Strategic Framework – Pay It Forward

4. Proposed Resolution 14-22: “Establishing population estimates as a
basis for 2023 annual participation fees to be assessed members” –
Kerstin Carr, Chief Regional Strategy Officer & Senior Director of Planning

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ODdkOTExNzktNjFjNi00YzUyLTliYjUtMGM2ZTBjNzUxNGUw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2290194b29-9096-438a-9d8e-b061540a6761%22%7d
tel:+16143623056,,167414899# 
tel:8885962819,,167414899# 


Commission Meeting Agenda 
October 13, 2022 
Page 2 

Committees 

5. Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization – Mark Forrest (Madison
County), Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization Chair

6. Regional Policy Roundtable – David Scheffler (City of Lancaster),
Regional Policy Roundtable Chair

• Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter and
Joseph Garrity, MORPC Senior Director of Government Affairs &
Community Relations

7. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Ben Kessler (City of Bexley),
Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair

• Sustainable2050 Recognition

8. Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Erik Janas (Franklin
County), MORPC Chair

a. Call to Order – Erik Janas (Franklin County), MORPC Chair

b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report

• Programming – Thea Ewing, MORPC Chief Regional Development
Officer & Senior Director of Programming

c. 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Update – Thea Ewing,
MORPC Chief Regional Development Officer & Senior Director of
Programming

d. Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda

1) Approval of September 8, 2022 Transportation Policy
Committee Meeting Minutes

e. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Erik Janas
(Franklin County), MORPC Chair

9. Commission Consent Agenda

a. Approval of September 8, 2022 Commission Meeting Minutes
b. Approval of Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee

10. Other Business

2:45 p.m. 11. Adjourn – Erik Janas (Franklin County), MORPC Chair



Commission Meeting Agenda 
October 13, 2022 
Page 2 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org 
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Wednesday, November 9, 2022, 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

PARKING AND TRANSIT: When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a 
MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with a yellow “M”. Handicapped parking is available at 
the side of MORPC’s building. On Commission meeting days only, additional parking is available in 
numbered spaces toward the west end of the parking lot. Electric vehicle charging stations are 
available for MORPC guests.  

Indoor bike parking is available for MORPC guests. 

MORPC is accessible by COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC southbound is High Street & 
W. Blenkner Street. Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th Ave./Refugee, and the 8 
- Karl/S. High/Parsons.  The closest stop to MORPC northbound is High Street & E. Hoster
Street.  Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th Avenue/Refugee and the 8 - Karl/S. 
High/Parsons. Accessible from the Courthouse stop by a quick walk are COTA lines 1, 2, 4, and 
CMAX.

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


1 

 

 

 
MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

September 2022 

 

Senior Directors
Kerstin Carr kcarr@morpc.org 
Thea Ewing twalsh@morpc.org 
Joe Garrity jgarrity@morpc.org 

Shawn Hufstedler shufstedler@morpc.org 
Níel M. Jurist njurist@morpc.org 
Robert Williams rwilliams@morpc.org 

 
 

DRIVE INVESTMENT 
 
Interregional Connections 
The Central Ohio region submitted a letter of intent for the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) Corridor 
Identification Program based on the Cincinnati-Dayton-Columbus-Cleveland (3C+D) and Chicago-Ft. Wayne-
Columbus-Pittsburgh passenger rail lines.  
 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
A resolution to amend the 2020-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) was adopted by the 
Transportation Policy Committee, Transportation Advisory Committee, and the Community Advisory 
Committee with an amendment to the resolution requesting that ODOT include high-capacity transit in the 
design, right-of-way, and construction of the amended MTP project 464.  
 
Team Members crafted goals, objectives, and performance measures for the 2024-2050 MTP.  
 
Federal Competitive Programs 
MORPC partnered with four member jurisdictions to submit applications to the Safe Streets and Roads for All 
program. All four applications were for construction of safety projects. 
 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) 
Meetings with all the CEDS counties are complete. 
  
With letters of support secured from nearly all the CEDS counties, Team Members are focused on research 
and data development for the EDD designation request. The first draft of the designation request will be 
submitted to the EDA in the fall of 2022.  
 
A letter of concurrence for the EDD designation has been requested from the State of Ohio. Team Members 
are working to secure the signed letter from Governor DeWine. 
 
MORPC Attributable Funding 
In mid-August, applicants received feedback from MORPC regarding screening applications. Final 
applications for funding were due September 28. A full summary of final applications was presented to the 
Attributable Funds Committee on October 5.  
 
Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) 
The priority list of applications from the MORPC MPO region was approved by the Transportation Policy 
Committee at its September 8 meeting. The list and public comments received was transmitted to TRAC by 
October 5. A regional public hearing for these projects will be held October 12 at the ODOT Central Office.  
 
Competitive Advantage Projects (CAP) 
During its meetings with each of the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy counties, MORPC 
Team Members reviewed current CAP projects and began discussions about updates in individual counties.  

mailto:kcarr@morpc.org
mailto:twalsh@morpc.org
mailto:jgarrity@morpc.org
mailto:shufstedler@morpc.org
mailto:njurist@morpc.org
mailto:rwilliams@morpc.org


2 

 

 
During the CORPO quarterly meeting, Team Members reviewed CAP updates for Fairfield, Knox, Madison, 
Marion, Morrow, Pickaway, Union Counties.  
 
Brownfield Assessments 
MORPC is awaiting the release of the next round of Brownfield funding from the U.S. EPA.  Strategies for the 
application approach include a focus on equity-based projects, food deserts, and areas of general economic 
distress. 
 
Grants 
MORPC hired a Grants Intern and a Grants Coordinator to support increasing requests from regional 
stakeholders for support around research, analysis, and application of grant and project funding. 
 
Team Members provided support for: 

• Perry County and Townships and Cities in the County around HB 377 and the upcoming release of 
$500 million in Appalachian grant funding from the State of Ohio. 

• Stakeholders research around EDA Public Works funding opportunities. 
 
Legislative Advocacy 
The Public Policy Agenda Working Group met September 15 to begin work on the 2023-2024 Public Policy 
Agenda.   
 
US 23 Connect Study 
Team Members continue supporting ODOT by participating on stakeholder meetings. 
 
LinkUs Mobility Initiative 
MORPC is attending the COTA Short-Range Transportation Plan (SRTP) Meetings to assist COTA in 
jurisdictional meetings regarding the next five-year planning strategy for COTA operations. Team Members 
are engaged in ongoing committee and working group meetings for the LinkUS initiative. 
 
CORPO 
MORPC hosted seven CORPO County Subcommittee Meetings that included representatives from ODOT 
Districts 5 and 6 and acted as STIP-related rural consultation meetings. Draft performance measures, TRAC 
recommendations and STIP project lists/maps were shared. CORPO Members were asked to submit 
comments by mid-October. 
 
Team Members provided guidance and support for the following: 

• US Moves Coalition in Union County 

• MORPC/CORPO joint application for the Safe Streets for All grant. The grant will provide funding for 
a safety action plan for the CORPO region. 

• Parks and Trails Working Group in Union County 
 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Coordination with ODOT is underway for the SFY 2024-2027 TIP. This process will be ongoing until the 
updated TIP is adopted in the spring of 2023.  
 
Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) 
Applicants in Franklin County District 3 submitted 19 applications requesting a total of $48 million in 
SCIP/LTIP funding for the fiscal year 2023 beginning July 1, 2023. Approximately $31 million is available. 
The Team is reviewing and scoring applications. The Public Works Integrating Committee’s (PWIC) next 
meeting is October 21.  
 
Clean Ohio Conservation Fund 
Round 17 of the Clean Ohio Conservation Fund kicked off with an applicant workshop on October 3. The 
goal of the workshop was to introduce new applicants to the application process for the next funding cycle. 
Preliminary screeners are due December 9. For more information, contact Edwina Teye (eteye@morpc.org). 
 
 

mailto:eteye@morpc.org


3 

 

PAY IT FORWARD 
 
Transportation Planning 
MORPC continues to host monthly APBP webinars virtually via Microsoft Teams. The October webinar is 
Thursday, October 19 at 3:00 p.m. The topic is Assessment of Bicycle Detection Confirmation and 
Countdown Devices. Contact Jordan Petrov (jpetrov@morpc.org) to attend.  
 
Events 
Data Day, originally scheduled for September 16, 2022, is postponed until March 2023 in order to enhance 
the program through a partnership with Ohio University. 
 
Upcoming Events: 

• Summit on Sustainability – October 14, Hilton Columbus Downtown. The theme is Transforming 
Our Future. Register here. 

• 2023 State of the Region – April 6, 2023, Hilton Downtown Columbus. 
 
Member Briefings, Events and Visits: 

• ICMA Conference 

• Intel Sustainability Event 

• Regional Collaboration Southwest  

• Eight member visits and two prospective member visits 

• Three county updates 

• New Board Member Orientation 

• Three policy updates 

• MODE 101 

• State of the City for New Albany 

• State of Fairfield County 

• City of Whitehall’s September Social 

• Intel Groundbreaking Ceremony 
 
Local Government Summer Internship Program 
Team Members met with Kenyon College officials to explore potential internship participation. Staff attended 
OSU Knowlton Open House to meet new Department Heads and Internship Coordinator. MORPC met with 
OSU Sustainability Program to discuss expanding their investment to allow more intern hours for Summer 
2023. 

 
Public Involvement & Engagement 
In recognition of National Preparedness Month, MORPC shared ways that Central Ohio residents can 
prepare for disasters and emergencies that can happen at any time. This includes building a safety kit with 
everyone in mind, making an action plan to follow when disaster strikes, and protecting your property and 
family from disasters. For more information about National Preparedness Month, click here. 
 
In September, MORPC promoted the following opportunities for public comment through social media: 

• 5310 Funding Applications & Workshop 

• Accepting RFP/RFQ Bids 

• Public Meeting: MORPC Certification Review: 9/8, 9/13 (also featured on MORPC’s website and 
published in the Columbus Dispatch) 

• Delaware County Transit Public Hearing 
 
Team Members promoted the Summit on Sustainability, Data Day, and Weatherization programs through 
TikTok videos that increase engagement and promote inclusivity. View our videos here .  
 
Outreach 
MORPC is planning data-focused presentations for several events, including the Summit on Sustainability 
and the Ohio GIS Conference.  
 

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/morpc-summit-on-sustainability-tickets-396696970317?utm-campaign=social&utm-content=attendeeshare&utm-medium=discovery&utm-term=listing&utm-source=cp&aff=escb
https://www.ready.gov/plan
https://twitter.com/MORPC/status/1573001755918585858
https://twitter.com/MORPC/status/1572314725404270595
https://twitter.com/MORPC/status/1567860384685559809
https://twitter.com/MORPC/status/1569737743604793346
https://www.morpc.org/event/mpo-certification-public-meeting/
https://www.instagram.com/p/CifV4IFu-W-/
https://www.tiktok.com/@morpc_


4 

 

Team Members will represent Central Ohio at the National Neighborhood Indicators Partnership annual 
meeting in October.  
 
 

CREATE AN ENVIRONMENT FOR PROSPERITY 
 
Transportation Safety 
Team Members provided assistance and letters of support to several member communities in their 
application for the new federal discretionary grant program Safe Streets and Roads for All. This included City 
of Columbus, City of Dublin, City of Hilliard, and City of Upper Arlington.   
 
Assistance is available for crash data analysis and safety funding applications, including but not limited to 
ODOT’s Highway Safety Improvement Program. Funding application windows open multiple times per year, 
depending on the type and amount of request. Contact Lauren Cardoni (lcardoni@morpc.org) for more 
information.  
 
Diversity & Inclusion 
Team Members participated in the “Columbus Commitment: Doing your part to close the gender and race-
based wage gap,” hosted by First Lady Ginther, Mayor Ginther, and the Columbus Women’s Commission. 
Discussion included how to understand what’s driving wage inequities and work towards achieving pay 
equity in our communities while focusing on recruitment & retention.   
 
Team Members attended the local Conference of Minority Transportation Officials (COMTO) monthly chapter 
meeting. The meeting discussed the 51st National Meeting and Training Conference, “Navigating the Future: 
Advancing Transportation Beyond Disruption.”  
 
Promoted and offered an internal diversity, equity and inclusion employee training to commit to a more 
inclusive workforce. 
   
Participated in the Central Ohio Diversity Consortium’s quarterly meeting, “How Can You Be Systemic in DEI 
Initiatives.” 
 
Active Transportation Committee 
The next Active Transportation Committee meeting is October 20. Members will have the option to attend in 
person or virtually via Microsoft Teams. Contact Lauren Cardoni (lcardoni@morpc.org) for more information.  

 
Technical Assistance Program 
Technical Assistance services for a Central Ohio Greenways Vision Refinement Activity for Metro Parks are 
complete. An implementation plan, alternatives analysis tool, and geodatabase were provided to the client. 
Metro Parks applied for MORPC attributable funding and are now working with a design consultant to further 
progress toward implementing the recommended alignment for extending the Scioto Trail.  
 
The Trail Access & Connectivity study for the City of Sunbury is complete. The client received a portfolio of 
documentation that includes recommendations for better connecting Sunbury communities to the Ohio-to-
Erie Trail.  
 
The Implementation Plans for the Cities of Columbus and Dublin are being developed and reviewed. When 
complete, these plans will recommend bike and trail access alignments to be prioritized for further feasibility 
study, funding applications, and implementation.  
 
Cycle 3 of the Technical Assistance Program is being developed. The Program Guide is being reviewed and 
updated for a new round of assistance to begin in 2023. The application window will likely open in November 
2022.  
 
Mobility Management 
The Union County Moves Coalition met and discussed forming a new workforce transportation subcommittee 
and startup of the county’s first homeless shelter. ODOT’s Office of Transit release transit funding awards. 
Madison and Fayette Counties continue to work toward coordinating mobility solutions. 

https://www.transportation.gov/grants/SS4A
https://www.transportation.ohio.gov/programs/highway+safety/highway-safety-improvement-program#page=1


5 

 

FTA Section 5310 Designated Recipient 
Team Members continue to work on the 2021 round of 5310 projects. They discussed 2019/2020 
outstanding vehicle deliveries with vendors. 
 
Gohio Commute 
Car-Free Day was September 22. Commuters were encouraged to try other forms of transportation. 
 
The Gohio Commute program continues to run a marketing campaign focused specifically on vanpooling and 
carpooling. This program is being promoted by billboard placement and social media.  
 
New marketing brochures were created in French to reach more diverse audiences. 
  
Regional Data Advisory Committee 
The Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) met September 13. Jay Knox, Director of Client Research 
from One Columbus, is a new committee member and Christina Drummond accepted the position of Vice-
Chair. Meeting materials are available here. 

• The Capacity Building & Partnership Working Group:  Hena Masood accepted the role of Working 
Group Chair. Data Day is rescheduled for early March 2023 in partnership with Ohio University.   

• The Local Government Resources Working Group created an online resource hub for data policy 
resources. Members are encouraged to share resources or recommendations for resources with the 
Working Group via the online submission form. 

• The Regional Municipal Fiber Strategy Working Group meets October 27. 

• The Regional Data Agenda Working Group’s Kickoff meeting is October 19. 

• The Regional Information & Data Group’s (RIDG) next meeting is December 7 and will feature  
Columbus City Auditor Megan Kilgore and other local government auditors in a round table 
discussion of the impacts to local budgets. As the Steering Committee Chair’s term will end in 
December, a new Chair and Vice-Chair will be elected at the December meeting.  

• The Regional Information & Data Group (RIDG) Steering Committee plans to shorten the length of 
full RIDG meetings to 90 minutes and to be primarily virtual. The Steering Committee hopes to 
proactively engage with RDAC Members to help implement RDAC initiatives and goals. The 
committee also hopes to welcome additional members in 2023.  

 
Data & Mapping 
Team Members continue to explore ways to standardize data tools and workflows and to improve version 
control and documentation. They identified opportunities to break the member population estimation process 
into modular components and are experimenting with techniques to formalize the schemas of the input and 
output data using schema descriptions in Apache Avro format.  

 
Team Members began the process of taking over management of the PurpleAir air quality data and data 
retrieval and analysis scripts created as part of the Thriving Earth Exchange grant effort. This effort is 
expected to include management of a GitHub repository, a cloud-based file storage repository, periodic 
execution of data retrieval scripts, and analysis of the data upon request.  
 
MORPC released the 2022 member community population estimates for internal review. The estimates will 
be available to members and the public via the MORPC Population Hub. The estimates will inform the 
determination of 2023 membership dues. 
 
Team Members worked with community partners to model the potential impacts of the Intel development on 
the region’s economy, demographics, and built environment.  
 
Sustainability Advisory Committee 
The Sustainability Advisory Committee met September 29. Meeting materials are available here. 
 
Sustainable2050 
Sustainable2050 met September 16. The agenda included updates on air quality, energy, clean energy 
opportunities under the Inflation Reduction Act, and a sustainability toolkit which is under development. Joe 
Flarida with Power a Clean Future Ohio, and Nolan Rutschilling with the Ohio Environmental Council, 
presented an overview of their recent report titled The Bill is Coming Due: Calculating the Financial Cost of 

https://www.morpc.org/committees/regional-data-advisory-committee/
https://www.morpc.org/committees/sustainability-advisory-committee/


6 

 

Climate Change to Ohio’s Local Governments. Several members expressed interest in focusing the next 
quarterly meeting on the federal funding opportunities from the Inflation Reduction Act and bi-partisan 
infrastructure bill and identifying where they have common interests. The next meeting is December 9. 
Membership and tier status certification is open to MORPC members. Please contact MORPC’s 
Sustainability Officer, Brandi Whetstone, for more information (BWhetstone@morpc.org). 
 
Central Ohio Greenways (COG) 
Based on committee recommendations, Tobi Otulana with Yay Bikes! and Jody Dzuranin, Executive Director 
of the Ohio to Erie Trail were offered seats on the Board and began their terms as board members on 
September 21.  
 
The Outdoor Trails Passport, a program in collaboration with Experience Columbus, is live. Residents and 
visitors are invited to access the passport online any time they explore a greenways trail. By checking in at 
locations across the COG network, passport users become eligible to win prizes.  
 
COG secured funding from ODOT for a Wayfinding Study that will launch in late 2022.  
 
Central Ohio Blueways 
Initial base mapping is in process to determine jurisdictions who would be impacted by a Blueways Program 
and Water Trail Designation of the five major waterways, which include Big Darby Creek, Scioto River, 
Olentangy River, Alum Creek, and Big Walnut Creek, as well as the mileage of waterways and the number of 
access points within each.  In conjunction with a timeline for the completion of each, the program charter is 
being revised with updated goals and objectives.  
 
Sustaining Scioto Board 
The next Sustaining Scioto Board meeting is October 26. 
 
Agricultural & Rural Communities Outreach Team 
The Agricultural & Rural Communities Outreach Team met September 15 to discuss strategies for increasing 
visibility for the working team and the general Sustaining Scioto Board. Members were also tasked with 
developing priorities for 2023, including increasing membership in the Working Team and making 
recommendations for members representing the agricultural community in the Sustaining Scioto Board. The 
team attended the Future of the Scioto Watershed webinar and discussed strategies to help increase value 
and interest in subsequent events. The next meeting is November 17. 
 
Air Quality 
No air quality alerts were issued during September.  
 
Team Members provided input on a proposed no-idling policy for the City of Upper Arlington and offered 
policy templates and resources for local governments, organizations, and businesses interested in adopting 
vehicle no-idling policies to reduce emissions and improve air quality. Those who adopt a policy are eligible 
to receive free no-idling parking lot signs on a first come, first served basis.  
 
Energy & Air Quality Working Group 
The Energy & Air Quality Working Group met September 27. Meeting materials are available here. 
 
Energy Planning 
Congratulations to the City of Hilliard for becoming the most recent member to earn the SolSmart Bronze 
designation. SolSmart is a national, no-cost technical assistance and designation program that helps local 
governments spur solar market growth in their communities. If interested in learning more, please contact 
Brian Filiatraut (bfiliatraut@morpc.org).  
 
The Columbus Area Residential Solar Co-op is open to all residents who live in and around Franklin County 
until October 15. If interested in learning more and possibly joining the co-op, please visit 
solarunitedneighbors.org/columbus.  
 
The Regional Schools Energy Strategy (ReSES) is an opportunity for schools, school districts, and local 
governments to move forward with onsite solar power generation through a collaborative solar co-op to 

mailto:BWhetstone@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/08-15-22-Future-of-the-Scioto-Watershed.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/committees/energy-air-quality-working-group/
mailto:bfiliatraut@morpc.org
https://www.solarunitedneighbors.org/co-ops/ohio/columbus-area-2022-solar-and-ev-charger-co-op/#coop


7 

 

secure the best pricing on installation and electricity rates. MORPC is in discussions with interested entities. 
If any local government or school leader is interested, please contact Brian Filiatraut (bfiliatraut@morpc.org).  
 
The Rickenbacker Energy Consortium (REC) met September 21 and continued the conversation on building 
public and private partnerships to spur clean energy projects in the area. The meeting featured the 
Columbus Region Airport Authority’s successes and approach to clean energy solutions. Anyone interested 
in learning more or joining should contact Brian Filiatraut (bfiliatraut@morpc.org).  
 
 

BUILD VALUE FOR OUR MEMBERS 
 
MORPC Annual Salary & Fringe Benefit Survey 
The final MORPC Annual Salary & Fringe Benefit Survey was issued September 30 and is available on 
MORPC’s website at https://www.morpc.org/tool-resource/salary-survey/. A large number of members (39) 
participated in the survey this year. 
 
MORPC in the News 
Links to press releases and news article for the month are available at www.morpc.org/MORPCInTheNews. 
 
Personnel Updates 
The following new Team Members recently started at MORPC: 

• Grants Intern Marcus Duemmel began September 12 

• Associate Planner Jordan Petrov began his new position September 12 (previously an intern) 

• Public Information Specialist Melissa Rapp began September 12 

• Grants Coordinator Preston Frick began October 3   

• Associate Engineer Diego Galdino began October 3   

• Senior Planner Jon Heider began October 3   

• Temporary Executive Schedule Tammie Showalter began October 3   
 

MORPC is currently recruiting for open positions:  

• Executive Assistant 

• Executive Scheduler 
 

The following are in the interviewing or offering stage, or onboarding soon: 

• Director of Data Analytics & Strategy 

• Mobility Coordinator 

• Central Ohio Greenways Intern 

• Associate Planner 
 

The requirements for the posted positions are available for review on the website at 
http://www.morpc.org/careers/.  
 
RFP/RFQ Postings 
The following RFP’s/RFQ’s were posted: 

• Cleaner Water in the Upper Scioto Watershed 

• HVAC Contractor for Residential Energy Programs 

• Insulation Contractor for Residential Energy Programs 
 

The full RFP/RFQs are available at http://www.morpc.org/rfps-rfqs/.  

mailto:bfiliatraut@morpc.org
mailto:bfiliatraut@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/tool-resource/salary-survey/
file:///C:/Users/afrey/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZIBMLWSV/www.morpc.org/MORPCInTheNews
http://www.morpc.org/careers/
http://www.morpc.org/rfps-rfqs/


 

 
 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 
 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Executive Committee 
Officers and Board Members 
 

FROM: 
 

Kerstin Carr, Chief Regional Strategy Officer &  
Senior Director of Planning 
 

DATE: October 4, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 14-22: " Establishing population estimates as a basis 
for 2023 annual participation fees to be assessed members " 
 

 
The attached Resolution 14-22 provides population estimates for January 1, 2022 for the purpose of 
assessing participation fees from member jurisdictions. The member participation fees (“dues”) are 
calculated using the rates adopted in Resolution 08-22. 
 
The population estimates for 2023 member dues calculations reflect change in the population from 
April 1, 2020 to January 1, 2022. In the data, we continue to see the lingering effects of the COVID-
19 pandemic in terms of higher-than-typical death rates, lower-than-typical birth rates, and a 
relatively low level of migration to the region.  At the close of 2021, birth and migration rates were 
beginning to trend back toward recent historical norms.  Although the death rate was still trending 
upward at that time, the rate of increase was slowing; an encouraging sign that suggests we may 
see a trend back toward historical norms when the data is available for 2022.  
 
Despite the continuing challenges imposed by the pandemic, our member communities collectively 
increased in population by around 5,000 residents.  For most individual communities, this relatively 
low overall growth tended to result in estimates that were comparable to last year, with the biggest 
increases accruing to places that are actively developing housing units and group residences such 
as dormitories and senior-care facilities.  While the overall growth is slower than we experienced 
throughout much of the 2010s, periods of faster or slower growth are part of the normal cycle of the 
long-term growth in our region, and we anticipate that recent statewide and regional initiatives to 
attract businesses and residents will spur a period of faster growth in the coming years.   
Consequently, Central Ohio is still on track to become a region of 3 million residents by 2050. 
 
Attachment:  Resolution 14-22 
 



RESOLUTION 14-22 
 

“Establishing population estimates as a basis for 2023 annual participation fees to be as-
sessed members” 

 
WHEREAS, MORPC staff has produced January 1, 2022 population estimates to provide a ba-
sis for local dues assessments, as per the Articles of Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, 2023 participation fees are assessed at a rate of $0.615 per capita for members 
within the federally declared Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Transportation Study 
Area boundaries of MORPC, $0.515 per capita for county members within the Central Ohio Ru-
ral Planning Organization (CORPO) boundaries, and $0.410 for all other members, excluding 
associate members which are not assessed population-based fees, in accordance with Resolu-
tion 08-22; and 
 
WHEREAS, $0.07 per capita is earmarked exclusively for the MORPC building/reserve, in ac-
cordance with Resolution 08-22; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 08-22 adopts rates consistent with the five-year plan proposed in Reso-
lution 09-21 and are below the “maximum per-capita membership fee” approved by the Com-
mission in Resolution 09-21 on June 10, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, Attachment 1 sets forth the population and dues assessments for MORPC mem-
bers; now therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 
 
Section 1. That the January 1, 2022 population estimates, as documented in the Attach-

ment, are hereby adopted for the purpose of assessing 2023 participation fees, 
as listed in the Attachment. 

 
Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute 

and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he 
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and ac-

tions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolu-
tion were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 
 
 

                                                                                
Erik J. Janas, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Effective date: October 13, 2022 
Submitted by: Kerstin Carr, Chief Regional Strategy Officer & Senior Director  
   of Planning 
Prepared by: Kerstin Carr, Chief Regional Strategy Officer & Senior Director  
   of Planning 
Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 
For action date: October 13, 2022 
Attachment: 2022 Population Estimates and 2023 Dues Assessment of MORPC 

Members 



Resolution 14-22
Attachment 1

2023 MORPC MEMBERSHIP DUES
 BASE YEAR 
POPULATION 

       2,189,395             2,203,848  $     1,442,903    150             1,974,172  $     1,327,696    138                 929,228              5,973            5,994                 941,195 

Community Government Type County Member Type
 2022 Member 

Dues Rate 
 2023 Member 

Dues Rate 

April 1, 2020 
Census 

Population
January 1, 2022 

Population Estimate  2023 Dues 
 2023 
Reps 

January 1, 2021 
Population Estimate  2022 Dues 

 2022 
Reps 

 Change in 
Dues (a) 

2020 Census Housing 
Units

New Single 
Family Units (c)

New 
Multifamily 

Units (d)
2022 Housing Unit 

Estimate
Overall Occupancy 

Rate
Overall Average 
Household Size

Occupancy Rate - 
Owner 

Households

Occupancy 
Rate - Renter 
Households

Household 
Size - Owner 
Households

Household Size 
- Renter 

Households
CITY MEMBERS
Bellefontaine City Logan Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             14,115                  14,034                         5,754$                    2          14,025                         5,610$                    2          144$              6,372                             4                           -                    6,376                             97.3% 100.0% 2.64 2.71
Bexley City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             13,928                  13,760                         8,462$                    2          13,862                         8,317$                    2          145$              4,942                             3                           -                    4,945                             97.9% 93.5% 2.81 1.91
Canal Winchester City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,706                    1,732                           1,065$                    1,987                           1,192$                    (127)$             665                                 9                           -                    674                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.62 3.13
Canal Winchester City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             7,401                    7,733                           4,756$                    7,482                           4,489$                    267$              2,885                             114                      -                    2,999                             100.0% 100.0% 3.78 2.34
Canal Winchester City Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             9,107                    9,465                           5,821$                    1          9,469                           5,681$                    1          140$              3,550                             123                      -                    3,673                             
Chillicothe City Ross Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             22,059                  21,935                         8,993$                    2          21,940                         8,776$                    2          217$              10,507                           -                       -                    10,507                           100.0% 100.0% 2.26 2.00
Circleville City Pickaway Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             13,927                  14,104                         5,783$                    2          13,873                         5,549$                    2          233$              6,130                             9                           -                    6,139                             100.0% 93.0% 2.80 2.53
Columbus City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             14,570                  14,674                         9,025$                    15,089                         9,053$                    (29)$               7,269                             -                       -                    7,269                             100.0% 100.0% 1.65 1.42
Columbus City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,849                  11,027                         6,782$                    10,870                         6,522$                    260$              3,922                             60                        -                    3,982                             100.0% 95.8% 2.74 2.18
Columbus City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             880,329                882,685                       542,851$                883,727                       530,236$                12,615$         404,265                         915                      4,301                409,481                         98.3% 100.0% 3.34 2.44
Columbus City Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             905,748                908,386                       558,657$                15        909,686                       545,812$                15        12,846$         415,456                         975                      4,301                420,732                         
Delaware City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             41,302                  42,798                         26,321$                  3          42,252                         25,351$                  3          970$              16,863                           453                      91                      17,407                           99.0% 83.8% 2.23 2.52
Dublin City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,250                    4,288                           2,637$                    4,244                           2,546$                    91$                 1,548                             3                           -                    1,551                             100.0% 100.0% 2.66 3.82
Dublin City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             40,734                  40,345                         24,812$                  40,616                         24,370$                  443$              15,371                           47                        -                    15,418                           100.0% 100.0% 2.71 3.38
Dublin City Union MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,344                    4,357                           2,680$                    4,361                           2,617$                    63$                 1,342                             46                        -                    1,388                             99.4% 92.9% 3.04 2.26
Dublin City Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             49,328                  48,990                         30,129$                  3          49,221                         29,533$                  3          596$              18,261                           96                        -                    18,357                           
Gahanna City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             35,726                  35,332                         21,729$                  2          35,746                         21,448$                  2          282$              14,734                           3                           -                    14,737                           100.0% 100.0% 2.81 3.56
Grandview Heights City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             8,085                    8,778                           5,398$                    1          8,078                           4,847$                    1          552$              4,018                             8                           278                    4,304                             100.0% 100.0% 3.04 2.81
Grove City City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             41,252                  41,554                         25,556$                  3          41,323                         24,794$                  3          762$              17,308                           231                      126                    17,665                           100.0% 98.2% 2.54 2.00
Groveport City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             6,009                    5,976                           3,675$                    1          5,981                           3,589$                    1          87$                 2,488                             17                        -                    2,505                             98.1% 94.9% 2.59 2.37
Hilliard City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             37,114                  36,982                         22,744$                  2          37,094                         22,256$                  2          488$              14,727                           86                        52                      14,865                           100.0% 100.0% 2.39 2.60
Johnstown City Licking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             5,182                    5,428                           2,225$                    1          5,315                           2,126$                    1          99$                 2,157                             94                        -                    2,251                             100.0% 84.3% 2.71 3.46
Lancaster City Fairfield Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             40,552                  41,103                         16,852$                  3          40,813                         16,325$                  3          527$              18,302                           60                        222                    18,584                           98.2% 96.8% 2.33 1.68
Marysville City Union Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             25,571                  27,926                         11,450$                  2          25,873                         10,349$                  2          1,100$           9,327                             217                      723                    10,267                           98.5% 100.0% 4.13 3.15
Mount Vernon City Knox Non-MPO 0.410$             16,956                  16,991                         6,966$                    2          7,662                             -                       -                    7,662                             100.0% 95.6% 2.77 2.50
New Albany City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,779                  10,874                         6,688$                    10,839                         -$                        6,688$           3,555                             83                        -                    3,638                             92.6% 95.5% 3.05 2.32
New Albany City Licking MPO 0.400$             0.615$             46                          46                                 28$                         24                                 -$                        28$                 18                                   -                       -                    18                                   98.0% 91.8% 3.40 3.18
New Albany City Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,825                  10,920                         6,716$                    2          10,863                         6,513$                    2          203$              3,573                             83                        -                    3,656                             
Obetz City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             5,489                    5,420                           3,333$                    1          5,632                           3,379$                    1          (46)$               1,980                             -                       -                    1,980                             99.7% 91.2% 2.34 2.17
Pataskala City Licking MPO 0.600$             0.615$             17,886                  18,276                         11,240$                  2          18,079                         10,847$                  2          392$              6,852                             179                      -                    7,031                             100.0% 81.5% 2.36 3.00
Pickerington City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             22,999                  23,861                         14,675$                  23,301                         13,981$                  694$              8,342                             264                      -                    8,606                             99.0% 100.0% 3.18 1.99
Pickerington City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             95                          94                                 58$                         94                                 56$                         1$                   31                                   -                       -                    31                                   99.4% 86.8% 3.04 2.46
Pickerington City Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             23,094                  23,955                         14,732$                  2          23,395                         14,037$                  2          695$              8,373                             264                      -                    8,637                             
Powell City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             14,163                  14,278                         8,781$                    2          14,192                         8,515$                    2          266$              4,965                             6                           -                    4,971                             100.0% 100.0% 2.31 2.22
Reynoldsburg City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,130                    1,131                           696$                       1,132                           679$                       16$                 448                                 -                       -                    448                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.73 2.86
Reynoldsburg City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             29,755                  29,801                         18,328$                  29,590                         17,754$                  574$              12,128                           167                      -                    12,295                           99.0% 90.4% 2.58 1.96
Reynoldsburg City Licking MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,191                  10,173                         6,256$                    10,179                         6,107$                    149$              3,438                             -                       -                    3,438                             98.8% 95.9% 2.41 2.64
Reynoldsburg City Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             41,076                  41,105                         25,280$                  3          40,901                         24,541$                  3          739$              16,014                           167                      -                    16,181                           
Sunbury City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             6,614                    6,718                           4,132$                    1          6,955                           4,173$                    1          (41)$               2,476                             7                           10                      2,493                             100.0% 100.0% 5.14 2.00
Upper Arlington City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             36,800                  36,335                         22,346$                  2          36,618                         21,971$                  2          375$              14,831                           -                       -                    14,831                           98.8% 94.5% 2.68 2.19
Westerville City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             9,230                    9,324                           5,734$                    9,291                           5,575$                    160$              4,081                             12                        -                    4,093                             100.0% 100.0% 2.35 1.81
Westerville City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             29,960                  29,592                         18,199$                  29,872                         17,923$                  276$              11,791                           4                           -                    11,795                           99.6% 85.6% 2.76 1.72
Westerville City Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             39,190                  38,916                         23,933$                  3          39,163                         23,498$                  3          436$              15,872                           16                        -                    15,888                           
Whitehall City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             20,127                  20,040                         12,325$                  2          20,254                         12,152$                  2          172$              8,479                             1                           96                      8,576                             100.0% 82.7% 2.39 2.10
Worthington City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             14,786                  14,610                         8,985$                    2          14,709                         8,825$                    2          160$              6,119                             5                           -                    6,124                             98.3% 96.8% 2.22 1.94
VILLAGE MEMBERS
Ashville Village Pickaway Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             4,529                    4,582                           1,879$                    1          4,518                           1,807$                    1          71$                 1,891                             2                           -                    1,893                             97.4% 94.0% 2.24 2.41
Buckeye Lake Village Fairfield Non-MPO 0.410$             25                          25                                 10$                         8                                     -                       -                    8                                     100.0% 94.1% 2.00 2.38
Buckeye Lake Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,495                    2,534                           1,039$                    1,512                             16                        -                    1,528                             98.5% 92.5% 2.75 2.43
Buckeye Lake Village Total Non-MPO 0.410$             2,520                    2,559                           1,049$                    1          1,520                             16                        -                    1,536                             
Galena Village Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             924                        1,110                           1,000$                    1          1,014                           1,000$                    1          -$               315                                 67                        -                    382                                 99.4% 95.9% 2.68 2.25
Gambier Village Knox Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             2,213                    2,218                           1,000$                    1          2,212                           1,000$                    1          -$               360                                 -                       -                    360                                 88.2% 92.1% 2.07 2.57
Granville Village Licking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             5,946                    6,103                           2,502$                    1          5,942                           2,377$                    1          125$              1,716                             1                           -                    1,717                             100.0% 93.2% 2.56 1.94
Hebron Village Licking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             2,326                    2,401                           1,000$                    1          2,345                           1,000$                    1          -$               1,107                             31                        -                    1,138                             98.6% 92.8% 2.57 2.36
Lithopolis Village Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,085                    2,088                           1,284$                    2,174                           1,304$                    (20)$               720                                 -                       -                    720                                 94.7% 95.9% 2.06 2.46
Lithopolis Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             49                          48                                 30$                         49                                 29$                         0$                   15                                   -                       -                    15                                   97.5% 100.0% 2.89 2.07
Lithopolis Village Total MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,134                    2,136                           1,314$                    1          2,223                           1,334$                    1          (20)$               735                                 -                       -                    735                                 
Lockbourne Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             236                        237                              1,000$                    1          235                              1,000$                    1          -$               95                                   1                           -                    96                                   100.0% 100.0% 4.04 2.32
Marble Cliff Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             634                        639                              1,000$                    1          630                              1,000$                    1          -$               326                                 -                       5                        331                                 100.0% 100.0% 3.64 2.59
Minerva Park Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,009                    1,984                           1,220$                    1          2,069                           1,241$                    1          (21)$               762                                 -                       -                    762                                 100.0% 92.7% 2.59 1.94
New Lexington Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             4,435                    4,396                           1,802$                    1          4,407                           1,802$           1,977                             -                       -                    1,977                             90.3% 91.1% 2.63 3.04
Plain City Village Madison Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             3,335                    3,442                           1,411$                    3,476                           1,390$                    21$                 1,355                             42                        -                    1,397                             93.5% 100.0% 2.41 2.79
Plain City Village Union Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             730                        710                              291$                       732                              293$                       (2)$                 342                                 -                       -                    342                                 100.0% 94.3% 2.56 2.98
Plain City Village Total Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             4,065                    4,152                           1,702$                    1          4,208                           1,683                      1          19$                 1,697                             42                        -                    1,739                             
Riverlea Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             599                        591                              1,000$                    1          596                              1,000$                    1          -$               241                                 -                       -                    241                                 97.5% 97.5% 2.59 2.28
Shawnee Hills Village Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             835                        844                              1,000$                    1          831                              1,000$                    1          -$               330                                 1                           -                    331                                 95.7% 78.1% 2.93 2.04
Somerset Village Perry Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             1,481                    1,468                           1,000$                    1          1,472                           1,000$                    1          -$               661                                 -                       -                    661                                 99.1% 93.7% 2.87 1.93
Urbancrest Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,031                    1,025                           1,000$                    1          1,025                           1,000$                    1          -$               379                                 3                           -                    382                                 97.5% 92.3% 2.30 2.32

MEMBER TOTAL (b)

2021 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2022 member dues 2022 HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATES

TOWNSHIP ASSUMPTIONS (e)

2022 OCCUPANCY RATE & HOUSEHOLD SIZE ASSUMPTIONS

 CITY & VILLAGE ASSUMPTIONS (f) 

2022 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2023 member dues



 BASE YEAR 
POPULATION 

       2,189,395             2,203,848  $     1,442,903    150             1,974,172  $     1,327,696    138                 929,228              5,973            5,994                 941,195 

Community Government Type County Member Type
 2022 Member 

Dues Rate 
 2023 Member 

Dues Rate 

April 1, 2020 
Census 

Population
January 1, 2022 

Population Estimate  2023 Dues 
 2023 
Reps 

January 1, 2021 
Population Estimate  2022 Dues 

 2022 
Reps 

 Change in 
Dues (a) 

2020 Census Housing 
Units

New Single 
Family Units (c)

New 
Multifamily 

Units (d)
2022 Housing Unit 

Estimate
Overall Occupancy 

Rate
Overall Average 
Household Size

Occupancy Rate - 
Owner 

Households

Occupancy 
Rate - Renter 
Households

Household 
Size - Owner 
Households

Household Size 
- Renter 

Households

MEMBER TOTAL (b)

2021 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2022 member dues 2022 HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATES

TOWNSHIP ASSUMPTIONS (e)

2022 OCCUPANCY RATE & HOUSEHOLD SIZE ASSUMPTIONS

 CITY & VILLAGE ASSUMPTIONS (f) 

2022 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2023 member dues

TOWNSHIP MEMBERS
Blendon Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             8,143                    8,048                           4,950$                    1          8,105                           4,863$                    1          87$                 3,034                             3                           -                    3,037                             97.2% 2.76
Bloom Township Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             7,612                    7,622                           4,688$                    1          7,677                           4,606$                    1          81$                 2,716                             -                       -                    2,716                             97.0% 2.89
Clinton Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,499                    4,446                           2,734$                    1          4,476                           2,686$                    1          49$                 2,153                             2                           -                    2,155                             89.5% 2.34
Etna Township Licking MPO 0.600$             0.615$             9,829                    9,956                           6,123$                    1          9,882                           5,929$                    1          194$              3,691                             54                        -                    3,745                             95.6% 2.79
Franklin Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,504                  10,374                         6,380$                    2          10,445                         6,267$                    2          113$              4,047                             1                           -                    4,048                             92.4% 2.79
Granville Township Licking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             4,298                    4,322                           1,772$                    1          4,319                           1,728$                    1          44$                 1,643                             12                        -                    1,655                             94.2% 2.75
Jackson Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,251                    4,207                           2,587$                    1          4,235                           2,587$           1,657                             4                           -                    1,661                             95.1% 2.70
Jefferson Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             13,603                  14,085                         8,662$                    2          13,830                         8,298$                    2          364$              4,725                             230                      -                    4,955                             96.8% 2.97
Jerome Township Union MPO 0.600$             0.615$             8,774                    9,212                           5,665$                    1          9,048                           5,429$                    1          237$              3,057                             245                      -                    3,302                             92.1% 3.12
Madison Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             11,101                  10,969                         6,746$                    2          11,041                         6,625$                    2          121$              4,264                             3                           -                    4,267                             96.7% 2.69
Mifflin Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,637                    2,629                           1,617$                    1          2,625                           1,575$                    1          42$                 1,098                             11                        -                    1,109                             89.2% 2.68
Perry Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,234                    4,181                           2,571$                    1          4,210                           2,526$                    1          45$                 1,569                             -                       -                    1,569                             96.8% 2.79
Plain Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,980                    1,958                           1,204$                    1          1,977                           1,186$                    1          18$                 759                                 1                           -                    760                                 93.4% 2.79
Prairie Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             17,500                  17,309                         10,645$                  2          17,406                         10,444$                  2          201$              6,956                             12                        -                    6,968                             95.2% 2.64
Truro Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,422                    1,404                           1,000$                    1          1,414                           1,000$                    1          -$               572                                 -                       -                    572                                 89.2% 2.79
Violet Township Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             20,214                  20,660                         12,706$                  2          20,432                         12,259$                  2          447$              6,953                             145                      -                    7,098                             97.7% 2.96
Washington Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,005                    992                              1,000$                    1          1,002                           1,000$                    1          -$               399                                 -                       -                    399                                 95.0% 2.65
COUNTY MEMBERS

214,124                221,115                       85,019$                  7          216,812                       80,395$                  7          4,625$           81,854                           1,876                   189                    83,919                           
Cities (10% population dues)
Columbus City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             14,570                  14,674                         902$                       15,089                         905$                       7,269                             -                       -                    7,269                             100.0% 100.0% 1.65 1.42
Delaware City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             41,302                  42,798                         2,632$                    42,252                         2,535$                    16,863                           453                      91                      17,407                           99.0% 83.8% 2.23 2.52
Dublin City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,250                    4,288                           264$                       4,244                           255$                       1,548                             3                           -                    1,551                             100.0% 100.0% 2.66 3.82
Powell City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             14,163                  14,278                         878$                       14,192                         852$                       4,965                             6                           -                    4,971                             100.0% 100.0% 2.31 2.22
Sunbury City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             6,614                    6,718                           413$                       6,955                           417$                       2,476                             7                           10                      2,493                             100.0% 100.0% 5.14 2.00
Westerville City Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             9,230                    9,324                           573$                       9,291                           557$                       4,081                             12                        -                    4,093                             100.0% 100.0% 2.35 1.81
Villages
Ashley Village Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,198                    1,209                           744$                       1,193                           716$                       531                                 1                           -                    532                                 98.4% 95.4% 2.26 2.20
Galena Village Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             924                        1,110                           683$                       1,014                           608$                       315                                 67                        -                    382                                 99.4% 95.9% 2.68 2.25
Ostrander Village Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,094                    1,173                           721$                       1,130                           678$                       365                                 26                        -                    391                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.73 1.16
Shawnee Hills Village Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             835                        844                              519$                       831                              499$                       330                                 1                           -                    331                                 95.7% 78.1% 2.93 2.04
Townships
Berkshire Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,476                    5,245                           3,226$                    4,641                           2,785$                    1,628                             268                      -                    1,896                             94.7% 2.88
Berlin Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             7,774                    8,449                           5,196$                    7,930                           4,758$                    2,527                             200                      -                    2,727                             96.3% 3.19
Brown Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,402                    1,422                           875$                       1,406                           844$                       571                                 4                           -                    575                                 95.8% 2.56
Concord Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,951                  11,582                         7,123$                    11,117                         6,670$                    4,071                             204                      -                    4,275                             95.2% 2.82
Delaware Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,138                    2,175                           1,338$                    2,133                           1,280$                    869                                 9                           -                    878                                 93.6% 2.63
Genoa Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             24,806                  25,178                         15,484$                  24,784                         14,870$                  8,752                             68                        -                    8,820                             97.4% 2.91
Harlem Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,554                    4,719                           2,902$                    4,588                           2,753$                    1,766                             51                        -                    1,817                             95.2% 2.71
Kingston Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,359                    2,417                           1,486$                    2,365                           1,419$                    870                                 15                        -                    885                                 97.6% 2.78
Liberty Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             18,234                  19,058                         11,721$                  18,418                         11,051$                  6,665                             236                      16                      6,917                             95.7% 2.86
Marlboro Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             295                        305                              188$                       294                              176$                       117                                 3                           -                    120                                 92.3% 2.73
Orange Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             30,553                  31,412                         19,318$                  30,546                         18,328$                  10,455                           147                      72                      10,674                           96.8% 3.00
Oxford Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             950                        972                              598$                       948                              569$                       386                                 6                           -                    392                                 95.3% 2.58
Porter Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,194                    2,263                           1,392$                    2,190                           1,314$                    788                                 19                        -                    807                                 96.6% 2.88
Radnor Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,570                    1,603                           986$                       1,568                           941$                       629                                 9                           -                    638                                 96.2% 2.60
Scioto Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,648                    2,759                           1,697$                    2,657                           1,594$                    1,043                             36                        -                    1,079                             95.9% 2.65
Thompson Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             659                        674                              415$                       661                              397$                       260                                 4                           -                    264                                 96.2% 2.64
Trenton Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,276                    2,341                           1,440$                    2,279                           1,367$                    851                                 19                        -                    870                                 94.0% 2.71
Troy Township Delaware MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,105                    2,125                           1,307$                    2,096                           1,258$                    863                                 2                           -                    865                                 92.9% 2.62

158,705                160,849                       49,703$                  5          160,201                       48,355$                  5          1,348$           62,380                           538                      222                    63,140                           
Cities (10% population dues)
Canal Winchester City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,706                    1,732                           107$                       1,987                           119$                       665                                 9                           -                    674                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.62 3.13
Columbus City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,849                  11,027                         678$                       10,870                         652$                       3,922                             60                        -                    3,982                             100.0% 95.8% 2.74 2.18
Lancaster City Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             40,552                  41,103                         2,117$                    40,813                         2,041$                    18,302                           60                        222                    18,584                           98.2% 96.8% 2.33 1.68
Pickerington City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             22,999                  23,861                         1,467$                    23,301                         1,398$                    8,342                             264                      -                    8,606                             99.0% 100.0% 3.18 1.99
Reynoldsburg City Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,130                    1,131                           70$                         1,132                           68$                         448                                 -                       -                    448                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.73 2.86
Village
Amanda Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             673                        674                              347$                       674                              337$                       287                                 -                       -                    287                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.79 4.15
Baltimore Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,981                    2,985                           1,537$                    2,998                           1,499$                    1,327                             -                       -                    1,327                             98.6% 91.5% 3.06 2.75
Bremen Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,479                    1,481                           763$                       1,499                           750$                       559                                 -                       -                    559                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.43 2.98
Buckeye Lake Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             25                          25                                 13$                         25                                 13$                         8                                     -                       -                    8                                     100.0% 94.1% 2.00 2.38
Carroll Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             501                        502                              259$                       502                              251$                       228                                 -                       -                    228                                 98.5% 97.6% 2.70 2.02
Lithopolis Village Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,085                    2,088                           1,284$                    2,174                           1,304$                    720                                 -                       -                    720                                 94.7% 95.9% 2.06 2.46
Millersport Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             978                        979                              504$                       980                              490$                       483                                 -                       -                    483                                 100.0% 87.9% 2.52 2.09
Pleasantville Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             934                        935                              482$                       936                              468$                       377                                 -                       -                    377                                 98.9% 94.4% 2.37 3.16
Rushville Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             304                        304                              157$                       305                              153$                       125                                 -                       -                    125                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.43 2.80
Stoutsville Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             579                        580                              299$                       580                              290$                       243                                 -                       -                    243                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.24 2.78
Sugar Grove Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             429                        430                              221$                       430                              215$                       171                                 -                       -                    171                                 99.5% 86.8% 2.92 1.97
Tarlton Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             -                        -                               -$                        -                               -$                        -                                 -                       -                    -                                 99.3% 97.6% 2.60 1.85
Thurston Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             603                        604                              311$                       604                              302$                       238                                 -                       -                    238                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.61 1.85
West Rushville Village Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             166                        166                              85$                         166                              83$                         63                                   -                       -                    63                                   100.0% 89.2% 2.52 1.74

Delaware County Total

Fairfield County Total



 BASE YEAR 
POPULATION 

       2,189,395             2,203,848  $     1,442,903    150             1,974,172  $     1,327,696    138                 929,228              5,973            5,994                 941,195 

Community Government Type County Member Type
 2022 Member 

Dues Rate 
 2023 Member 

Dues Rate 

April 1, 2020 
Census 

Population
January 1, 2022 

Population Estimate  2023 Dues 
 2023 
Reps 

January 1, 2021 
Population Estimate  2022 Dues 

 2022 
Reps 

 Change in 
Dues (a) 

2020 Census Housing 
Units

New Single 
Family Units (c)

New 
Multifamily 

Units (d)
2022 Housing Unit 

Estimate
Overall Occupancy 

Rate
Overall Average 
Household Size

Occupancy Rate - 
Owner 

Households

Occupancy 
Rate - Renter 
Households

Household 
Size - Owner 
Households

Household Size 
- Renter 

Households

MEMBER TOTAL (b)

2021 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2022 member dues 2022 HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATES

TOWNSHIP ASSUMPTIONS (e)

2022 OCCUPANCY RATE & HOUSEHOLD SIZE ASSUMPTIONS

 CITY & VILLAGE ASSUMPTIONS (f) 

2022 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2023 member dues

Township
Amanda Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,049                    2,052                           1,057$                    2,064                           1,032$                    759                                 -                       -                    759                                 97.0% 2.78
Berne Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             4,628                    4,634                           2,387$                    4,642                           2,321$                    1,869                             -                       -                    1,869                             93.5% 2.64
Bloom Township Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             7,612                    7,622                           4,688$                    7,677                           4,606$                    2,716                             -                       -                    2,716                             97.0% 2.89
Clearcreek Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             3,505                    3,510                           1,808$                    3,512                           1,756$                    1,332                             -                       -                    1,332                             96.7% 2.72
Greenfield Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             5,204                    5,211                           2,684$                    5,229                           2,615$                    2,029                             -                       -                    2,029                             94.7% 2.64
Hocking Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             4,850                    4,856                           2,501$                    4,866                           2,433$                    1,309                             -                       -                    1,309                             96.0% 2.61
Liberty Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             5,241                    5,248                           2,703$                    5,280                           2,640$                    1,962                             -                       -                    1,962                             97.1% 2.73
Madison Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,770                    1,772                           913$                       1,773                           887$                       645                                 -                       -                    645                                 92.9% 2.95
Pleasant Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             5,650                    5,657                           2,913$                    5,676                           2,838$                    2,237                             -                       -                    2,237                             95.1% 2.66
Richland Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,837                    1,839                           947$                       1,851                           926$                       660                                 -                       -                    660                                 91.4% 2.89
Rush Creek Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,517                    2,520                           1,298$                    2,534                           1,267$                    1,020                             -                       -                    1,020                             90.3% 2.71
Violet Township Fairfield MPO 0.600$             0.615$             20,214                  20,660                         12,706$                  20,432                         12,259$                  6,953                             145                      -                    7,098                             97.7% 2.96
Walnut Township Fairfield CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             4,655                    4,661                           2,400$                    4,689                           2,345$                    2,381                             -                       -                    2,381                             80.7% 2.41

1,323,822             1,324,865                    139,571$                11        1,326,780                    136,462$                11        3,109$           580,870                         1,978                   4,858                587,706                         
Cities (10% population dues)
Bexley City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             13,928                  13,760                         846$                       13,862                         832$                       4,942                             3                           -                    4,945                             97.9% 93.5% 2.81 1.91
Canal Winchester City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             7,401                    7,733                           476$                       7,482                           449$                       2,885                             114                      -                    2,999                             100.0% 100.0% 3.78 2.34
Columbus City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             880,329                882,685                       54,285$                  883,727                       53,024$                  404,265                         915                      4,301                409,481                         98.3% 100.0% 3.34 2.44
Dublin City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             40,734                  40,345                         2,481$                    40,616                         2,437$                    15,371                           47                        -                    15,418                           100.0% 100.0% 2.71 3.38
Gahanna City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             35,726                  35,332                         2,173$                    35,746                         2,145$                    14,734                           3                           -                    14,737                           100.0% 100.0% 2.81 3.56
Grandview Heights City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             8,085                    8,778                           540$                       8,078                           485$                       4,018                             8                           278                    4,304                             100.0% 100.0% 3.04 2.81
Grove City City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             41,252                  41,554                         2,556$                    41,323                         2,479$                    17,308                           231                      126                    17,665                           100.0% 98.2% 2.54 2.00
Groveport City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             6,009                    5,976                           368$                       5,981                           359$                       2,488                             17                        -                    2,505                             98.1% 94.9% 2.59 2.37
Hilliard City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             37,114                  36,982                         2,274$                    37,094                         2,226$                    14,727                           86                        52                      14,865                           100.0% 100.0% 2.39 2.60
New Albany City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,779                  10,874                         669$                       10,839                         650$                       3,555                             83                        -                    3,638                             92.6% 95.5% 3.05 2.32
Obetz City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             5,489                    5,420                           333$                       5,632                           338$                       1,980                             -                       -                    1,980                             99.7% 91.2% 2.34 2.17
Pickerington City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             95                          94                                 6$                           94                                 6$                           31                                   -                       -                    31                                   99.4% 86.8% 3.04 2.46
Reynoldsburg City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             29,755                  29,801                         1,833$                    29,590                         1,775$                    12,128                           167                      -                    12,295                           99.0% 90.4% 2.58 1.96
Upper Arlington City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             36,800                  36,335                         2,235$                    36,618                         2,197$                    14,831                           -                       -                    14,831                           98.8% 94.5% 2.68 2.19
Westerville City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             29,960                  29,592                         1,820$                    29,872                         1,792$                    11,791                           4                           -                    11,795                           99.6% 85.6% 2.76 1.72
Whitehall City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             20,127                  20,040                         1,232$                    20,254                         1,215$                    8,479                             1                           96                      8,576                             100.0% 82.7% 2.39 2.10
Worthington City Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             14,786                  14,610                         899$                       14,709                         883$                       6,119                             5                           -                    6,124                             98.3% 96.8% 2.22 1.94
Villages
Brice Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             93                          92                                 57$                         92                                 55$                         40                                   -                       -                    40                                   100.0% 100.0% 2.58 2.63
Harrisburg Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             315                        311                              191$                       313                              188$                       149                                 -                       -                    149                                 96.4% 100.0% 1.70 1.92
Lithopolis Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             49                          48                                 30$                         49                                 29$                         15                                   -                       -                    15                                   97.5% 100.0% 2.89 2.07
Lockbourne Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             236                        237                              146$                       235                              141$                       95                                   1                           -                    96                                   100.0% 100.0% 4.04 2.32
Marble Cliff Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             634                        639                              393$                       630                              378$                       326                                 -                       5                        331                                 100.0% 100.0% 3.64 2.59
Minerva Park Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,009                    1,984                           1,220$                    2,069                           1,241$                    762                                 -                       -                    762                                 100.0% 92.7% 2.59 1.94
Riverlea Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             599                        591                              363$                       596                              358$                       241                                 -                       -                    241                                 97.5% 97.5% 2.59 2.28
Urbancrest Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,031                    1,025                           630$                       1,025                           615$                       379                                 3                           -                    382                                 97.5% 92.3% 2.30 2.32
Valleyview Village Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             669                        661                              407$                       665                              399$                       266                                 -                       -                    266                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.54 2.43
Townships
Blendon Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             8,143                    8,048                           4,950$                    8,105                           4,863$                    3,034                             3                           -                    3,037                             97.2% 2.76
Brown Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,643                    2,659                           1,635$                    2,631                           1,579$                    906                                 17                        -                    923                                 96.9% 3.01
Clinton Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,499                    4,446                           2,734$                    4,476                           2,686$                    2,153                             2                           -                    2,155                             89.5% 2.34
Franklin Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             10,504                  10,374                         6,380$                    10,445                         6,267$                    4,047                             1                           -                    4,048                             92.4% 2.79
Hamilton Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,226                    4,173                           2,566$                    4,204                           2,522$                    1,888                             -                       -                    1,888                             95.3% 2.35
Jackson Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,251                    4,207                           2,587$                    4,235                           2,541$                    1,657                             4                           -                    1,661                             95.1% 2.70
Jefferson Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             13,603                  14,085                         8,662$                    13,830                         8,298$                    4,725                             230                      -                    4,955                             96.8% 2.97
Madison Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             11,101                  10,969                         6,746$                    11,041                         6,625$                    4,264                             3                           -                    4,267                             96.7% 2.69
Mifflin Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             2,637                    2,629                           1,617$                    2,625                           1,575$                    1,098                             11                        -                    1,109                             89.2% 2.68
Norwich Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             3,839                    3,795                           2,334$                    3,820                           2,292$                    1,445                             2                           -                    1,447                             95.8% 2.77
Perry Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             4,234                    4,181                           2,571$                    4,210                           2,526$                    1,569                             -                       -                    1,569                             96.8% 2.79
Plain Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,980                    1,958                           1,204$                    1,977                           1,186$                    759                                 1                           -                    760                                 93.4% 2.79
Pleasant Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             6,437                    6,366                           3,915$                    6,406                           3,844$                    2,625                             4                           -                    2,629                             93.6% 2.61
Prairie Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             17,500                  17,309                         10,645$                  17,406                         10,444$                  6,956                             12                        -                    6,968                             95.2% 2.64
Sharon Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,794                    1,771                           1,089$                    1,784                           1,070$                    848                                 -                       -                    848                                 95.0% 2.23
Truro Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,422                    1,404                           863$                       1,414                           848$                       572                                 -                       -                    572                                 89.2% 2.79
Washington Township Franklin MPO 0.600$             0.615$             1,005                    992                              610$                       1,002                           601$                       399                                 -                       -                    399                                 95.0% 2.65

28,007                  27,997                         8,788$                    2          27,908                         8,546$                    2          242$              12,970                           -                       -                    12,970                           
Cities (10% population dues)
Logan City Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             7,296                    7,293                           299$                       7,271                           291$                       3,263                             -                       -                    3,263                             95.7% 100.0% 2.43 2.04
Villages
Buchtel Village Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             32                          32                                 13$                         32                                 13$                         10                                   -                       -                    10                                   95.2% 100.0% 2.41 3.63
Laurelville Village Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             512                        512                              210$                       510                              204$                       276                                 -                       -                    276                                 98.4% 93.0% 3.31 2.48
Murray City Village Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             341                        341                              140$                       340                              136$                       194                                 -                       -                    194                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.48 2.06
Townships
Benton Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             780                        780                              320$                       777                              311$                       409                                 -                       -                    409                                 78.7% 2.42
Falls Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             5,132                    5,130                           2,103$                    5,114                           2,046$                    2,293                             -                       -                    2,293                             88.1% 2.54
Good Hope Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             1,331                    1,330                           545$                       1,326                           530$                       604                                 -                       -                    604                                 89.9% 2.45
Green Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             2,639                    2,638                           1,082$                    2,630                           1,052$                    1,096                             -                       -                    1,096                             94.3% 2.55

Franklin County Total

Hocking County Total



 BASE YEAR 
POPULATION 

       2,189,395             2,203,848  $     1,442,903    150             1,974,172  $     1,327,696    138                 929,228              5,973            5,994                 941,195 

Community Government Type County Member Type
 2022 Member 

Dues Rate 
 2023 Member 

Dues Rate 

April 1, 2020 
Census 

Population
January 1, 2022 

Population Estimate  2023 Dues 
 2023 
Reps 

January 1, 2021 
Population Estimate  2022 Dues 

 2022 
Reps 

 Change in 
Dues (a) 

2020 Census Housing 
Units

New Single 
Family Units (c)

New 
Multifamily 

Units (d)
2022 Housing Unit 

Estimate
Overall Occupancy 

Rate
Overall Average 
Household Size

Occupancy Rate - 
Owner 

Households

Occupancy 
Rate - Renter 
Households

Household 
Size - Owner 
Households

Household Size 
- Renter 

Households

MEMBER TOTAL (b)

2021 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2022 member dues 2022 HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATES

TOWNSHIP ASSUMPTIONS (e)

2022 OCCUPANCY RATE & HOUSEHOLD SIZE ASSUMPTIONS

 CITY & VILLAGE ASSUMPTIONS (f) 

2022 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2023 member dues

Laurel Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             1,042                    1,042                           427$                       1,038                           415$                       530                                 -                       -                    530                                 84.3% 2.33
Marion Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             2,493                    2,492                           1,022$                    2,484                           994$                       1,361                             -                       -                    1,361                             76.3% 2.40
Perry Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             1,896                    1,895                           777$                       1,889                           756$                       844                                 -                       -                    844                                 87.1% 2.58
Salt Creek Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             1,117                    1,117                           458$                       1,113                           445$                       515                                 -                       -                    515                                 81.7% 2.65
Starr Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             1,455                    1,454                           596$                       1,450                           580$                       665                                 -                       -                    665                                 86.2% 2.54
Ward Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             810                        810                              332$                       807                              323$                       378                                 -                       -                    378                                 87.8% 2.44
Washington Township Hocking Non-MPO 0.400$             0.410$             1,131                    1,131                           464$                       1,127                           451$                       532                                 -                       -                    532                                 94.5% 2.25

62,781                  62,911                         24,524$                  3          62,722                         23,742$                  3          782$              25,826                           -                       -                    25,826                           
Cities (10% population dues)
Mount Vernon City Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             16,956                  16,991                         875$                       16,932                         847$                       7,662                             -                       -                    7,662                             100.0% 95.6% 2.77 2.50
Villages
Centerburg Village Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,690                    1,694                           872$                       1,687                           844$                       706                                 -                       -                    706                                 98.9% 92.7% 2.50 2.15
Danville Village Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,019                    1,021                           526$                       1,017                           509$                       460                                 -                       -                    460                                 100.0% 100.0% 1.41 1.36
Fredericktown Village Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,648                    2,654                           1,367$                    2,643                           1,322$                    1,181                             -                       -                    1,181                             100.0% 100.0% 2.92 2.79
Gambier Village Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,213                    2,218                           1,142$                    2,212                           1,106$                    360                                 -                       -                    360                                 88.2% 92.1% 2.07 2.57
Gann Village Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             114                        114                              59$                         114                              57$                         57                                   -                       -                    57                                   100.0% 91.2% 1.85 1.82
Martinsburg Village Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             222                        222                              114$                       222                              111$                       96                                   -                       -                    96                                   100.0% 94.0% 2.61 2.81
Utica Village Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             16                          16                                 8$                           16                                 8$                           7                                     -                       -                    7                                     94.2% 98.1% 3.11 3.40
Townships
Berlin Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,772                    1,776                           915$                       1,769                           885$                       731                                 -                       -                    731                                 96.2% 2.52
Brown Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,048                    2,052                           1,057$                    2,044                           1,022$                    700                                 -                       -                    700                                 88.4% 3.31
Butler Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,294                    1,297                           668$                       1,292                           646$                       415                                 -                       -                    415                                 90.8% 3.43
Clay Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,320                    1,323                           681$                       1,318                           659$                       491                                 -                       -                    491                                 92.5% 2.91
Clinton Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,869                    2,875                           1,481$                    2,864                           1,432$                    1,240                             -                       -                    1,240                             92.8% 2.45
College Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             340                        341                              176$                       339                              170$                       143                                 -                       -                    143                                 96.5% 2.46
Harrison Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             854                        856                              441$                       852                              426$                       323                                 -                       -                    323                                 94.4% 2.80
Hilliar Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,091                    2,095                           1,079$                    2,087                           1,044$                    770                                 -                       -                    770                                 95.7% 2.83
Howard Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             5,873                    5,885                           3,031$                    5,908                           2,954$                    3,081                             -                       -                    3,081                             77.8% 2.45
Jackson Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,076                    1,078                           555$                       1,074                           537$                       405                                 -                       -                    405                                 89.9% 2.96
Jefferson Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             768                        770                              397$                       767                              384$                       305                                 -                       -                    305                                 88.5% 2.84
Liberty Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,906                    1,910                           984$                       1,902                           951$                       764                                 -                       -                    764                                 94.6% 2.63
Middlebury Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,406                    1,409                           726$                       1,403                           702$                       433                                 -                       -                    433                                 94.0% 3.45
Milford Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,866                    1,870                           963$                       1,863                           932$                       707                                 -                       -                    707                                 96.0% 2.75
Miller Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,095                    1,097                           565$                       1,093                           547$                       420                                 -                       -                    420                                 93.6% 2.79
Monroe Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,353                    2,358                           1,214$                    2,349                           1,175$                    905                                 -                       -                    905                                 95.9% 2.52
Morgan Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,034                    1,036                           534$                       1,032                           516$                       409                                 -                       -                    409                                 91.2% 2.77
Morris Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             2,080                    2,084                           1,073$                    2,076                           1,038$                    813                                 -                       -                    813                                 93.0% 2.63
Pike Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,656                    1,659                           854$                       1,653                           827$                       587                                 -                       -                    587                                 94.4% 2.99
Pleasant Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,657                    1,660                           855$                       1,654                           827$                       694                                 -                       -                    694                                 95.4% 2.50
Union Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             1,552                    1,555                           801$                       1,549                           775$                       570                                 -                       -                    570                                 89.8% 3.03
Wayne Township Knox CORPO 0.500$             0.515$             993                        995                              512$                       991                              496$                       391                                 -                       -                    391                                 95.4% 2.66

178,509                180,247                       41,698$                  5          72,708                           729                      -                    73,437                           
Cities (10% population dues)
Heath City Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             10,412                  10,412                         427$                       4,548                             8                           -                    4,556                             100.0% 82.9% 2.29 1.79
Johnstown City Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             5,182                    5,428                           223$                       2,157                             94                        -                    2,251                             100.0% 84.3% 2.71 3.46
New Albany City Licking MPO 0.615$             46                          46                                 3$                           18                                   -                       -                    18                                   98.0% 91.8% 3.40 3.18
Newark City Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             49,934                  50,052                         2,052$                    22,351                           70                        -                    22,421                           95.2% 100.0% 3.07 2.82
Pataskala City Licking MPO 0.615$             17,886                  18,276                         1,124$                    6,852                             179                      -                    7,031                             100.0% 81.5% 2.36 3.00
Reynoldsburg City Licking MPO 0.615$             10,191                  10,173                         626$                       3,438                             -                       -                    3,438                             98.8% 95.9% 2.41 2.64
Villages
Alexandria Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             483                        482                              198$                       198                                 -                       -                    198                                 96.3% 84.9% 2.51 2.54
Buckeye Lake Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,495                    2,534                           1,039$                    1,512                             16                        -                    1,528                             98.5% 92.5% 2.75 2.43
Granville Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             5,946                    6,103                           2,502$                    1,716                             1                           -                    1,717                             100.0% 93.2% 2.56 1.94
Gratiot Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             135                        135                              55$                         49                                   -                       -                    49                                   100.0% 100.0% 3.11 1.48
Hanover Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,270                    1,268                           520$                       450                                 -                       -                    450                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.15 1.78
Hartford Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             404                        403                              165$                       155                                 -                       -                    155                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.86 3.05
Hebron Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,326                    2,401                           984$                       1,107                             31                        -                    1,138                             98.6% 92.8% 2.57 2.36
Kirkersville Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             471                        470                              193$                       192                                 -                       -                    192                                 100.0% 100.0% 3.04 1.50
St. Louisville Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             352                        351                              144$                       148                                 -                       -                    148                                 100.0% 100.0% 3.11 4.75
Utica Village Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,048                    2,052                           841$                       936                                 3                           -                    939                                 98.5% 92.5% 2.75 2.43
Townships
Bennington Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,682                    1,687                           692$                       643                                 3                           -                    646                                 96.1% 2.72
Bowling Green Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,807                    1,825                           748$                       682                                 8                           -                    690                                 95.0% 2.79
Burlington Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,209                    1,222                           501$                       499                                 6                           -                    505                                 93.0% 2.61
Eden Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,281                    1,284                           526$                       495                                 2                           -                    497                                 93.3% 2.77
Etna Township Licking MPO 0.615$             9,829                    9,956                           6,123$                    3,691                             54                        -                    3,745                             95.6% 2.79
Fallsbury Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             985                        983                              403$                       415                                 -                       -                    415                                 91.8% 2.59
Franklin Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,112                    2,136                           876$                       824                                 11                        -                    835                                 96.0% 2.67
Granville Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             4,298                    4,322                           1,772$                    1,643                             12                        -                    1,655                             94.2% 2.75
Hanover Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,834                    1,858                           762$                       739                                 11                        -                    750                                 93.0% 2.67
Harrison Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             8,052                    8,317                           3,410$                    2,941                             102                      -                    3,043                             97.7% 2.80
Hartford Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,029                    1,035                           424$                       402                                 3                           -                    405                                 95.0% 2.69
Hopewell Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,260                    1,268                           520$                       508                                 4                           -                    512                                 93.3% 2.66

Knox County Total

Licking County Total



 BASE YEAR 
POPULATION 

       2,189,395             2,203,848  $     1,442,903    150             1,974,172  $     1,327,696    138                 929,228              5,973            5,994                 941,195 

Community Government Type County Member Type
 2022 Member 

Dues Rate 
 2023 Member 

Dues Rate 

April 1, 2020 
Census 

Population
January 1, 2022 

Population Estimate  2023 Dues 
 2023 
Reps 

January 1, 2021 
Population Estimate  2022 Dues 

 2022 
Reps 

 Change in 
Dues (a) 

2020 Census Housing 
Units

New Single 
Family Units (c)

New 
Multifamily 

Units (d)
2022 Housing Unit 

Estimate
Overall Occupancy 

Rate
Overall Average 
Household Size

Occupancy Rate - 
Owner 

Households

Occupancy 
Rate - Renter 
Households

Household 
Size - Owner 
Households

Household Size 
- Renter 

Households

MEMBER TOTAL (b)

2021 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2022 member dues 2022 HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATES

TOWNSHIP ASSUMPTIONS (e)

2022 OCCUPANCY RATE & HOUSEHOLD SIZE ASSUMPTIONS

 CITY & VILLAGE ASSUMPTIONS (f) 

2022 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2023 member dues

Jersey Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,501                    2,519                           1,033$                    1,043                             9                           -                    1,052                             95.4% 2.51
Liberty Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,756                    2,787                           1,143$                    982                                 13                        -                    995                                 97.8% 2.87
Licking Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             4,816                    4,857                           1,991$                    2,152                             22                        -                    2,174                             91.7% 2.44
Madison Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             3,180                    3,195                           1,310$                    1,205                             8                           -                    1,213                             95.9% 2.75
Mary Ann Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,120                    2,126                           872$                       850                                 4                           -                    854                                 92.1% 2.71
McKean Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,606                    1,620                           664$                       671                                 7                           -                    678                                 94.6% 2.53
Monroe Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,571                    2,587                           1,061$                    1,041                             8                           -                    1,049                             96.8% 2.55
Newark Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,175                    2,176                           892$                       922                                 2                           -                    924                                 94.5% 2.49
Newton Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,842                    2,856                           1,171$                    1,173                             8                           -                    1,181                             95.4% 2.54
Perry Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             1,671                    1,684                           690$                       623                                 6                           -                    629                                 92.8% 2.89
St. Albans Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             2,059                    2,077                           852$                       827                                 9                           -                    836                                 95.6% 2.57
Union Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             4,309                    4,335                           1,777$                    1,523                             12                        -                    1,535                             97.0% 2.92
Washington Township Licking Non-MPO 0.410$             944                        949                              389$                       387                                 3                           -                    390                                 92.8% 2.63

46,144                  46,051                         13,702$                  2          45,897                         13,310$                  2          393$              23,655                           115                      2                        23,772                           

Bellefontaine City Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             14,115                  14,034                         575$                       14,025                         561$                       6,372                             4                           -                    6,376                             97.3% 100.0% 2.64 2.71
Villages
Belle Center Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             809                        804                              330$                       802                              321$                       348                                 -                       -                    348                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.46 2.18
De Graff Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,250                    1,242                           509$                       1,239                           496$                       519                                 -                       -                    519                                 97.0% 94.6% 2.34 2.12
Huntsville Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             408                        405                              166$                       404                              162$                       186                                 -                       -                    186                                 100.0% 95.0% 2.80 2.28
Lakeview Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,184                    1,176                           482$                       1,174                           470$                       638                                 -                       -                    638                                 100.0% 95.0% 2.72 2.28
Quincy Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             536                        533                              219$                       531                              212$                       253                                 -                       -                    253                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.37 1.74
Ridgeway Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             107                        106                              43$                         106                              42$                         43                                   -                       -                    43                                   100.0% 100.0% 2.67 2.11
Rushsylvania Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             491                        488                              200$                       487                              195$                       210                                 -                       -                    210                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.11 4.96
Russells Point Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,320                    1,311                           538$                       1,308                           523$                       1,063                             -                       -                    1,063                             94.4% 93.1% 2.69 3.81
Valley Hi Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             228                        227                              93$                         226                              90$                         148                                 -                       -                    148                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.93 1.87
West Liberty Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,770                    1,759                           721$                       1,755                           702$                       846                                 -                       -                    846                                 93.2% 100.0% 3.16 2.56
West Mansfield Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             749                        744                              305$                       742                              297$                       321                                 -                       -                    321                                 91.9% 79.5% 2.25 4.03
Zanesfield Village Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             194                        193                              79$                         192                              77$                         97                                   -                       -                    97                                   85.2% 100.0% 2.88 1.39
Townships
Bloomfield Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             417                        419                              172$                       413                              165$                       158                                 2                           -                    160                                 98.1% 2.69
Bokescreek Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             557                        558                              229$                       552                              221$                       224                                 2                           -                    226                                 89.7% 2.77
Harrison Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,612                    1,613                           661$                       1,610                           644$                       641                                 5                           -                    646                                 95.3% 2.46
Jefferson Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             2,003                    2,026                           831$                       1,995                           798$                       841                                 15                        -                    856                                 94.4% 2.52
Lake Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             651                        647                              265$                       680                              272$                       261                                 -                       -                    261                                 95.8% 2.60
Liberty Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,354                    1,361                           558$                       1,350                           540$                       500                                 6                           -                    506                                 97.8% 2.68
McArthur Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,512                    1,512                           620$                       1,501                           600$                       627                                 4                           -                    631                                 97.1% 2.48
Miami Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             541                        542                              222$                       538                              215$                       316                                 3                           -                    319                                 74.4% 2.30
Monroe Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,625                    1,627                           667$                       1,624                           650$                       606                                 5                           -                    611                                 94.9% 2.83
Perry Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             954                        950                              390$                       950                              380$                       405                                 1                           -                    406                                 93.3% 2.52
Pleasant Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             923                        920                              377$                       915                              366$                       344                                 1                           -                    345                                 93.3% 2.88
Richland Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,836                    1,851                           759$                       1,827                           731$                       1,010                             15                        -                    1,025                             70.2% 2.59
Rushcreek Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,664                    1,666                           683$                       1,659                           664$                       661                                 5                           -                    666                                 93.6% 2.69
Stokes Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             3,366                    3,375                           1,384$                    3,349                           1,340$                    3,738                             33                        2                        3,773                             45.9% 1.94
Union Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             755                        752                              308$                       751                              300$                       321                                 1                           -                    322                                 90.3% 2.60
Washington Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             2,022                    2,027                           831$                       2,007                           803$                       1,469                             13                        -                    1,482                             59.4% 2.32
Zane Township Logan Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,191                    1,183                           485$                       1,185                           474$                       489                                 -                       -                    489                                 96.9% 2.51

43,830                  44,274                         17,970$                  2          16,217                           117                      -                    16,334                           

London City Madison CORPO 0.515$             10,279                  10,424                         537$                       4,390                             41                        -                    4,431                             100.0% 85.3% 2.63 1.74
Villages
Midway Village Madison CORPO 0.515$             269                        270                              139$                       120                                 -                       -                    120                                 100.0% 80.6% 2.83 2.95
Mount Sterling Village Madison CORPO 0.515$             1,945                    1,952                           1,005$                    884                                 -                       -                    884                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.51 2.41
Plain City Village Madison CORPO 0.515$             3,335                    3,442                           1,773$                    1,355                             42                        -                    1,397                             93.5% 100.0% 2.41 2.79
South Solon Village Madison CORPO 0.515$             329                        330                              170$                       145                                 -                       -                    145                                 91.1% 100.0% 2.43 3.03
West Jefferson Village Madison CORPO 0.515$             4,137                    4,152                           2,138$                    1,737                             -                       -                    1,737                             100.0% 92.9% 1.85 1.90
Townships
Canaan Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             2,631                    2,646                           1,363$                    967                                 2                           -                    969                                 96.6% 2.82
Darby Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             932                        938                              483$                       371                                 1                           -                    372                                 93.8% 2.68
Deer Creek Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             967                        970                              500$                       410                                 -                       -                    410                                 91.0% 2.58
Fairfield Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             1,452                    1,462                           753$                       564                                 2                           -                    566                                 95.2% 2.70
Jefferson Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             3,075                    3,093                           1,593$                    1,245                             3                           -                    1,248                             95.4% 2.59
Monroe Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             1,581                    1,592                           820$                       620                                 2                           -                    622                                 95.6% 2.67
Oak Run Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             521                        533                              274$                       207                                 4                           -                    211                                 97.6% 2.58
Paint Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             554                        558                              287$                       232                                 1                           -                    233                                 93.1% 2.56
Pike Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             545                        550                              283$                       170                                 1                           -                    171                                 95.9% 2.88
Pleasant Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             1,327                    1,337                           689$                       527                                 2                           -                    529                                 95.3% 2.64
Range Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             712                        718                              370$                       277                                 1                           -                    278                                 90.3% 2.85
Somerford Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             3,053                    3,078                           1,585$                    1,302                             6                           -                    1,308                             91.4% 2.57
Stokes Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             319                        322                              166$                       132                                 1                           -                    133                                 91.7% 2.64
Union Township Madison CORPO 0.515$             5,867                    5,907                           3,042$                    562                                 8                           -                    570                                 92.9% 2.50

35,025                  35,139                         18,097$                  2          34,960                         17,480$                  2          617$              14,507                           60                        -                    14,567                           Morrow County Total

Logan County Total
Cities (10% population dues)

Madison County Total
Cities (10% population dues)



 BASE YEAR 
POPULATION 

       2,189,395             2,203,848  $     1,442,903    150             1,974,172  $     1,327,696    138                 929,228              5,973            5,994                 941,195 

Community Government Type County Member Type
 2022 Member 

Dues Rate 
 2023 Member 

Dues Rate 

April 1, 2020 
Census 

Population
January 1, 2022 

Population Estimate  2023 Dues 
 2023 
Reps 

January 1, 2021 
Population Estimate  2022 Dues 

 2022 
Reps 

 Change in 
Dues (a) 

2020 Census Housing 
Units

New Single 
Family Units (c)

New 
Multifamily 

Units (d)
2022 Housing Unit 

Estimate
Overall Occupancy 

Rate
Overall Average 
Household Size

Occupancy Rate - 
Owner 

Households

Occupancy 
Rate - Renter 
Households

Household 
Size - Owner 
Households

Household Size 
- Renter 

Households

MEMBER TOTAL (b)

2021 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2022 member dues 2022 HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATES

TOWNSHIP ASSUMPTIONS (e)

2022 OCCUPANCY RATE & HOUSEHOLD SIZE ASSUMPTIONS

 CITY & VILLAGE ASSUMPTIONS (f) 

2022 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2023 member dues

Cities (10% population dues)
Galion (g) City Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             -                        -                               -$                        -                               -$                        -                                 -                       -                    -                                 97.1% 95.6% 2.27 2.04
Villages
Cardington Village Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,079                    2,077                           1,070$                    2,068                           1,034$                    889                                 -                       -                    889                                 100.0% 98.2% 2.85 2.52
Chesterville Village Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             191                        191                              98$                         190                              95$                         77                                   -                       -                    77                                   100.0% 86.1% 2.42 2.21
Edison Village Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             422                        422                              217$                       420                              210$                       187                                 -                       -                    187                                 100.0% 93.4% 2.58 2.19
Fulton Village Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             250                        250                              129$                       249                              125$                       113                                 -                       -                    113                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.99 3.13
Marengo Village Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             283                        283                              146$                       282                              141$                       127                                 -                       -                    127                                 96.7% 100.0% 2.17 2.11
Mount Gilead Village Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             3,503                    3,500                           1,803$                    3,497                           1,749$                    1,655                             -                       -                    1,655                             100.0% 100.0% 3.02 1.93
Sparta Village Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             121                        121                              62$                         120                              60$                         58                                   -                       -                    58                                   98.5% 100.0% 2.02 2.09
Townships
Bennington Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             3,052                    3,106                           1,600$                    3,057                           1,529$                    1,155                             22                        -                    1,177                             95.4% 2.71
Canaan Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             900                        906                              467$                       898                              449$                       371                                 3                           -                    374                                 93.3% 2.60
Cardington Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,001                    1,000                           515$                       996                              498$                       427                                 -                       -                    427                                 93.4% 2.51
Chester Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,660                    1,658                           854$                       1,654                           827$                       643                                 -                       -                    643                                 93.0% 2.78
Congress Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,939                    2,942                           1,515$                    2,928                           1,464$                    1,420                             3                           -                    1,423                             82.0% 2.52
Franklin Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,609                    1,607                           828$                       1,601                           801$                       604                                 -                       -                    604                                 92.4% 2.88
Gilead Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,018                    2,021                           1,041$                    2,015                           1,008$                    834                                 2                           -                    836                                 96.8% 2.50
Harmony Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,610                    2,643                           1,361$                    2,615                           1,308$                    1,007                             14                        -                    1,021                             94.2% 2.73
Lincoln Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,749                    1,747                           900$                       1,760                           880$                       686                                 -                       -                    686                                 93.0% 2.74
North Bloomfield Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,853                    1,872                           964$                       1,850                           925$                       802                                 9                           -                    811                                 93.4% 2.47
Perry Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,971                    1,969                           1,014$                    1,961                           981$                       665                                 -                       -                    665                                 93.4% 3.17
Peru Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,496                    1,495                           770$                       1,488                           744$                       590                                 -                       -                    590                                 95.6% 2.65
South Bloomfield Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,675                    1,673                           862$                       1,672                           836$                       633                                 -                       -                    633                                 97.2% 2.70
Troy Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,156                    1,155                           595$                       1,150                           575$                       532                                 -                       -                    532                                 93.6% 2.32
Washington Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,261                    1,276                           657$                       1,259                           630$                       545                                 7                           -                    552                                 90.3% 2.56
Westfield Township Morrow CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,226                    1,225                           631$                       1,230                           615$                       487                                 -                       -                    487                                 97.1% 2.59

35,683                  35,371                         14,502$                  2          35,460                         14,184$                  2          318$              15,107                           -                       -                    15,107                           
Villages
Corning Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             488                        484                              198$                       485                              194$                       208                                 -                       -                    208                                 100.0% 86.3% 2.57 2.34
Crooksville Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             2,418                    2,397                           983$                       2,403                           961$                       1,057                             -                       -                    1,057                             100.0% 88.7% 2.38 2.06
Glenford Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             165                        164                              67$                         164                              66$                         64                                   -                       -                    64                                   98.4% 100.0% 2.30 1.93
Hemlock Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             142                        141                              58$                         141                              56$                         69                                   -                       -                    69                                   100.0% 100.0% 2.74 2.24
Junction City Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             721                        715                              293$                       716                              286$                       308                                 -                       -                    308                                 100.0% 100.0% 3.25 1.92
New Lexington Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             4,435                    4,396                           1,802$                    4,407                           1,763$                    1,977                             -                       -                    1,977                             90.3% 91.1% 2.63 3.04
New Straitsville Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             652                        646                              265$                       648                              259$                       308                                 -                       -                    308                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.40 1.60
Rendville Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             28                          28                                 11$                         28                                 11$                         16                                   -                       -                    16                                   77.0% 100.0% 2.46 1.68
Roseville Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,061                    1,052                           431$                       1,054                           422$                       469                                 -                       -                    469                                 100.0% 100.0% 3.43 2.21
Shawnee Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             505                        501                              205$                       502                              201$                       240                                 -                       -                    240                                 100.0% 100.0% 3.62 1.92
Somerset Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,481                    1,468                           602$                       1,472                           589$                       661                                 -                       -                    661                                 99.1% 93.7% 2.87 1.93
Thornville Village Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,087                    1,077                           442$                       1,080                           432$                       450                                 -                       -                    450                                 95.2% 100.0% 2.21 1.94
Townships
Bearfield Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,465                    1,452                           595$                       1,456                           582$                       652                                 -                       -                    652                                 90.2% 2.49
Clayton Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,565                    1,551                           636$                       1,555                           622$                       640                                 -                       -                    640                                 91.1% 2.68
Coal Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             285                        282                              116$                       283                              113$                       121                                 -                       -                    121                                 95.0% 2.48
Harrison Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,934                    1,917                           786$                       1,922                           769$                       822                                 -                       -                    822                                 96.0% 2.45
Hopewell Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             2,420                    2,399                           984$                       2,405                           962$                       867                                 -                       -                    867                                 96.2% 2.90
Jackson Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             2,089                    2,071                           849$                       2,076                           830$                       817                                 -                       -                    817                                 95.8% 2.67
Madison Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             1,367                    1,355                           556$                       1,358                           543$                       553                                 -                       -                    553                                 90.1% 2.74
Monday Creek Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             694                        688                              282$                       690                              276$                       291                                 -                       -                    291                                 84.2% 2.83
Monroe Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             837                        830                              340$                       832                              333$                       398                                 -                       -                    398                                 83.2% 2.53
Pike Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             2,248                    2,228                           913$                       2,234                           894$                       846                                 -                       -                    846                                 93.4% 2.73
Pleasant Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             847                        840                              344$                       842                              337$                       375                                 -                       -                    375                                 95.2% 2.37
Reading Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             2,862                    2,837                           1,163$                    2,844                           1,138$                    1,129                             -                       -                    1,129                             93.4% 2.72
Salt Lick Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             510                        505                              207$                       507                              203$                       215                                 -                       -                    215                                 80.5% 2.95
Thorn Township Perry Non-MPO 0.380$             0.410$             3,377                    3,347                           1,372$                    3,356                           1,342$                    1,554                             -                       -                    1,554                             86.6% 2.48

62,765                  65,029                         19,492$                  2          63,432                         19,059$                  2          432$              23,134                           560                      723                    24,417                           
Cities (10% population dues)
Dublin City Union MPO 0.575$             0.615$             4,344                    4,357                           268$                       4,361                           262$                       1,342                             46                        -                    1,388                             99.4% 92.9% 3.04 2.26
Marysville City Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             25,571                  27,926                         1,438$                    25,873                         1,294$                    9,327                             217                      723                    10,267                           98.5% 100.0% 4.13 3.15
Villages
Magnetic Springs Village Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             267                        261                              134$                       267                              134$                       113                                 1                           -                    114                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.46 2.00
Milford Center Village Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             807                        785                              404$                       809                              405$                       313                                 1                           -                    314                                 100.0% 100.0% 1.40 1.67
Plain City Village Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             730                        710                              366$                       732                              366$                       342                                 -                       -                    342                                 100.0% 94.3% 2.56 2.98
Richwood Village Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,222                    2,160                           1,112$                    2,220                           1,110$                    959                                 -                       -                    959                                 100.0% 100.0% 2.20 1.84
Unionville Center Village Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             241                        234                              121$                       241                              121$                       91                                   -                       -                    91                                   100.0% 93.0% 2.76 2.07
Townships
Allen Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,365                    2,312                           1,191$                    2,366                           1,183$                    853                                 5                           -                    858                                 95.4% 2.91
Claibourne Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,251                    1,221                           629$                       1,252                           626$                       504                                 2                           -                    506                                 96.4% 2.57
Darby Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,156                    2,131                           1,097$                    2,171                           1,086$                    789                                 13                        -                    802                                 96.6% 2.83
Dover Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,326                    2,271                           1,170$                    2,334                           1,167$                    904                                 4                           -                    908                                 95.6% 2.69
Jackson Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             954                        932                              480$                       964                              482$                       356                                 2                           -                    358                                 96.3% 2.78
Jerome Township Union MPO 0.575$             0.615$             8,774                    9,212                           5,665$                    9,048                           5,429$                    3,057                             245                      -                    3,302                             92.1% 3.12
Leesburg Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,220                    1,189                           612$                       1,224                           612$                       460                                 1                           -                    461                                 96.7% 2.74
Liberty Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             2,048                    2,004                           1,032$                    2,054                           1,027$                    749                                 5                           -                    754                                 95.6% 2.86
Millcreek Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,332                    1,295                           667$                       1,336                           668$                       519                                 -                       -                    519                                 95.8% 2.68

Perry County Total

Union County Total



 BASE YEAR 
POPULATION 

       2,189,395             2,203,848  $     1,442,903    150             1,974,172  $     1,327,696    138                 929,228              5,973            5,994                 941,195 

Community Government Type County Member Type
 2022 Member 

Dues Rate 
 2023 Member 

Dues Rate 

April 1, 2020 
Census 

Population
January 1, 2022 

Population Estimate  2023 Dues 
 2023 
Reps 

January 1, 2021 
Population Estimate  2022 Dues 

 2022 
Reps 

 Change in 
Dues (a) 

2020 Census Housing 
Units

New Single 
Family Units (c)

New 
Multifamily 

Units (d)
2022 Housing Unit 

Estimate
Overall Occupancy 

Rate
Overall Average 
Household Size

Occupancy Rate - 
Owner 

Households

Occupancy 
Rate - Renter 
Households

Household 
Size - Owner 
Households

Household Size 
- Renter 

Households

MEMBER TOTAL (b)

2021 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2022 member dues 2022 HOUSING UNIT ESTIMATES

TOWNSHIP ASSUMPTIONS (e)

2022 OCCUPANCY RATE & HOUSEHOLD SIZE ASSUMPTIONS

 CITY & VILLAGE ASSUMPTIONS (f) 

2022 POPULATION 
Used to calculate 2023 member dues

Paris Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,585                    1,548                           797$                       1,589                           795$                       602                                 3                           -                    605                                 93.7% 2.81
Taylor Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,516                    1,481                           763$                       1,515                           758$                       601                                 3                           -                    604                                 95.3% 2.65
Union Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             903                        883                              455$                       902                              451$                       380                                 2                           -                    382                                 92.6% 2.57
Washington Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             812                        799                              411$                       819                              410$                       337                                 4                           -                    341                                 89.0% 2.71
York Township Union CORPO 0.480$             0.515$             1,341                    1,318                           679$                       1,355                           678$                       536                                 6                           -                    542                                 95.9% 2.61

���������	
�����	
�� ������	�������������������	������������

����� 	� �	�������
��	��	
	�����	���������������� ������ 	� �	�
������	���
�	���	���������	����� ��	�������	��������	
������������ ��	��� 	� �	�
��
��	����
�� 	��������������!�	
������	�

����"	��
����	���� �������
���������	
��� ��	��������	��		��#������$�%&%&�'��
	��	��(�����)	�	� �	��*�$�%&%�+��

� 	
���,�� ������������ 	��	��		�����	������������	�� ����
��

	��������������������

����"	��� ������ �������
���������	
��� ��	��������	��		��#������$�%&%&�'��
	��	��(�����)	�	� �	��*�$�%&%�+��

� 	
���-�� ������������ 	��	��		�����	������������	�� ����
��

	��������������������

	�����������������	����
�������
��������
���
��
�	
��� ��	��
������	�� 	�����������������	������ 	���	���
	�����
�.	�	
��� ��	������ ���	�%&%&��	�



������������������	����
�������
��������	
����� �����	
��
�	
��� ��	��
������	��	��	��������������	������ 	���	���
	�����
�.	������ ������ �������
��������	��������������	������ 	���	���
	�����
�.	�����
����	���� �������
�
����%&�,�%&%&�/��	���#�0�����

����1�	��	�	�������	�

��	����	��.	�����������������2�������������230������
�
�����	������� ��	���������� 
�������������
� ���������������2���������������
����� �����������$��������
������������	��
�����	���	 	���	��



 

 
Transportation Policy Committee Members Present In Person 
Chris Amorose Groomes 
Karen Angelou 
Herb Asher 
Tina Cottone 
Kristen Easterday 
Brad Ebersole 
Cindi Fitzpatrick 
Chris Harkness 

Tom Homan 
Pam Hykes O’Grady 
Erik Janas 
James Jewell 
Ben Kessler 
Bill LaFayette 
Greg Lestini 
Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 
Megan O’Callaghan 
Rod Pritchard 
Lori Sanders 
Kent Shafer 
Kim Sharp 
Steve Schoeny 
Vince Utterback

Transportation Policy Committee Members Attending Remotely 
Barry Adler 
Mike Anderson 
Lee Bodnar 
Susan Brobst 
Ron Bullard 
Greg Butcher 
Chasilyn Carter 
Ben Collins 

LaGrieta Holloway 
Christine Houk 
Matt Huffman 
Laurie Jadwin 
Eric Meyer 
Bonnie Michael 
Eric Richter 
Ryan Rivers 

Lauren Rummel 
Joe Stefanov 
Shanette Strickland 
Christie Ward 
Brent Welch for  
  Cornell Robertson 
Kenneth Wright

 
Commission Members Present In Person 
Joe Antram 
Stephanie Bosco 
Franklin Christman 
Dave Dicks 

Eric Emmert 
Bill Habig 
David Kell 
David Scheffler 

RC Wise 
 

 
Commission Members Attending Remotely 
Joy Davis 
Terry Emery 
Sam Filkins 

Jeff Gottke 
Bill Narducci 
Eric Phillips 

Chris Schmenk 
Ben Stahler 
Jim Stanley

 
Associate Members Attending In Person
Jennifer Fish 
 
Associate Members Attending Remotely 
Kristin Sutton 

 
MORPC Staff Present in Person 
Kerstin Carr 
Thea Ewing 
Amanda Frey 
Joe Garrity 
Ralonda Hampton 
Shawn Hufstedler 
Níel Jurist 

Grant Lach 
Eileen Leuby 
Amanda McEldowney 
William Murdock 
Anthony Perry 
Kyle Probert 
Chuck Ratliff 

Shari Saunders 
Lord Schofield 
Robin Underwood 
Brandi Whetstone 
Robert Williams 

MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
Brian Filiatraut 
Mary Ann Frantz 
Nick Gill 

Thomas Graham 
Elliott Lewis 
Jennifer Noll 

Megan Stein

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

  
Date: September 8, 2022 
Time: 2:22 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Town Hall 



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2022 
Page 2 

 
 
Guests Present in Person 
Christina Drummond, City of Powell 
Lisa Patt-McDaniel, Workforce Development 
  Board of Central Ohio 

Dan Ralley, City of Hilliard 
Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter

 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Brian Davidson, ODOT District 6 
Mark Evans, Etna Township 

Andy Shifflette, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Trent Thompson

 
Meeting Called to Order 
Chair Erik Janas called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:22 p.m. 
 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Report 

• Programming – Thea Ewing, MORPC Chief Regional Development Officer & Senior 
Director of Programming  
Thea Ewing presented the Metropolitan Planning Organization Report. The ODOT Transportation 
Review Advisory Council (TRAC) received 31 applications to advance major capital projects. Six 
projects are from the MORPC MPO area requesting a total of $306 million. The six projects went 
through the MORPC prioritization process based on goals from the long range transportation 
plan. The proposed prioritization is on today’s consent agenda (Resolution T-11-22). Ms. Ewing 
will present the projects to ODOT on the TRAC hearing day. 
 
MORPC is working with colleagues in Delaware, Morrow and Marion Counties and the Toledo 
region on the U.S. 23 Study. ODOT felt results of the first study exceeded the value of the return 
on investment. We continue to look at ways to improve connectivity between Toledo and 
Columbus. Toledo foresees additional freight opportunities 
  

Proposed Resolution T-9-22: “Amending the 2020-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan” – Thea 
Ewing, MORPC Chief Regional Development Officer & Senior Director of Programming 
Thea Ewing presented the 2020-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Amendment. The amendment is 
needed to include Intel-related projects. One comment was received from the Community Advisory 
Community asking that for future iterations of amendments for the Intel area, Board Members consider 
transit related projects for accessibility. 
 
Greg Lestini made a motion to approve Resolution T-9-22, second by Pam Hykes O’Grady; motion 
passed. 
 
2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Update – Thea Ewing, MORPC Chief Regional 
Development Officer & Senior Director of Programming 
Thea Ewing gave an update on the 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan. The draft Goals & 
Objectives are out for public comment. The goals are the same as in the last few transportation plans. 
Only minor grammatical changes were made. The goals will be presented for adoption in November. 
Maria Schaper is the project lead. 
 
Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda 
Tom Homan made a motion to approve the Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda, second 
by Bill LaFayette; motion passed.  
 
The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:22 p.m. 
 
 

https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-MPO.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-MTP-Amend.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-MTP-Goals-Objectives.pdf


Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2022 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
Michelle Crandall, Secretary 
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 



 
Commission Members Present In Person 
Chris Amorose Groomes 
Karen Angelou 
Joe Antram 
Herb Asher 
Stephanie Bosco 
Franklin Christman 
Tina Cottone 
Dave Dicks 
Brad Ebersole 
Eric Emmert 
Cindi Fitzpatrick 

Bill Habig 
Chris Harkness 
Tom Homan 
Pam Hykes O’Grady 
Erik Janas 
James Jewell 
David Kell 
Ben Kessler 
Bill LaFayette 
Greg Lestini 
Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 
Megan O’Callaghan 
Rod Pritchard 
Lori Sanders 
David Scheffler 
Kent Shafer 
Steve Schoeny 
Vince Utterback 
RC Wise

Commission Members Attending Remotely 
Barry Adler 
Mike Anderson 
Lee Bodnar 
Susan Brobst 
Ron Bullard 
Greg Butcher 
Ben Collins 
Joy Davis 
Terry Emery 
Sam Filkins 

Jeff Gottke 
Christine Houk 
Matt Huffman 
Laurie Jadwin 
Eric Meyer 
Bonnie Michael 
Bill Narducci 
Eric Phillips 
Eric Richter 
Ryan Rivers 

Lauren Rummel 
Chris Schmenk 
Ben Stahler 
Jim Stanley 
Joe Stefanov 
Shanette Strickland 
Christie Ward 
Brent Welch for  
  Cornell Robertson 
Kenneth Wright

 
Transportation Policy Committee Members Present In Person 
Kristen Easterday 
 

Kim Sharp 
 

Transportation Policy Committee Members Attending Remotely 
Chasilyn Carter LaGrieta Holloway

 
Associate Members Attending In Person
Jennifer Fish 
 
Associate Members Attending Remotely 
Kristin Sutton 

 
MORPC Staff Present in Person 
Kerstin Carr 
Thea Ewing 
Amanda Frey 
Joe Garrity 
Ralonda Hampton 
Shawn Hufstedler 
Níel Jurist 

Grant Lach 
Eileen Leuby 
Amanda McEldowney 
William Murdock 
Anthony Perry 
Kyle Probert 
Chuck Ratliff 

Shari Saunders 
Lord Schofield 
Robin Underwood 
Brandi Whetstone 
Robert Williams 

MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
Brian Filiatraut 
Mary Ann Frantz 
Nick Gill 

Thomas Graham 
Elliott Lewis 
Jennifer Noll 

Megan Stein

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
  

Date: September 8, 2022 
Time: 1:30 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Town Hall 



Commission Minutes 

September 8, 2022 

Page 2 

 
 
Guests Present in Person 
Christina Drummond, City of Powell 
Lisa Patt-McDaniel, Workforce Development 
  Board of Central Ohio 

Dan Ralley, City of Hilliard 
Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 

 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Brian Davidson, ODOT District 6 
Mark Evans, Etna Township 

Andy Shifflette, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Trent Thompson

 
Meeting Called to Order – Erik Janas (Franklin County), MORPC Chair 
Chair Erik Janas called the Commission meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. followed by the pledge of 
allegiance. 
 
Commission Members observed a moment of silence in memory of former Commission Representative 
from Westerville Alex Heckman. 
 
Chair Janas congratulated Dana McDaniel on his upcoming retirement. Chair Janas thanked Mr. 
McDaniel for his leadership and friendship to the community and the region. Megan O’Callaghan is the 
new City Manager for Dublin beginning October 1. 
 
Recognition of Guests – Eileen Leuby, MORPC Membership Services Officer 
Eileen Leuby welcomed new Commission representatives Eric Emmert, Village of New Lexington; Rick 
Black, Licking County; Alexis Fitzsimmons, Licking County; Dave Dicks, Licking County; Chris Harkness, 
Licking County; Rob Platte, Licking County; Kim Sharp, COTA; and Sam Filkins, Knox County. 

 
Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 
William Murdock added his congratulations for Mr. McDaniel and wished good luck to Tom Homan with 
the upcoming International City Council Management Association (ICMA) Conference.  
 
Mr. Murdock reported he is doing better health wise and appreciates the good wishes. He is getting back 
up to speed. The MORPC Team is covering things well. 
 
Mr. Murdock congratulated Franklin County Commissioner John O’Grady on being appointed the chair of 
the National Association of Counties Large Urban County Caucus.  
 
MORPC is collaborating with a group called Lead for America through AmeriCorps. Grant Lach, from 
Lancaster, is working with MORPC for the next year on Sustainable2050.  
 
Mr. Murdock thanked those who worked with the Village of New Lexington. The addition of New 
Lexington brings MORPC membership to 80 communities if the Commission approves the resolution 
accepting them as members. 
 
MORPC’s Residential Services Senior Director Robert Williams is working with Franklin County and 
several other partners to look at how to reduce obstacles for contractors working in our home repair 
program for vulnerable families. Contact Mr. Williams if you are interested in trying to solve this problem. 
The solution applies to the region. 
 
Over 30 communities participated in the 2022 Annual Salary Survey. The survey is a good tool to see 
what other communities are paying and providing in benefits, etc. You do not have to participate in the 
survey to use it. Mr. Murdock thanked MORPC’s Operations Team and the communities that 
participated. The survey will be available online in the next few weeks. 



Commission Minutes 

September 8, 2022 

Page 3 

 
 
MORPC hosted and helped coordinate the Ohio Association of Regional Councils Candidates Forum. It 
was one of only two events that Governor DeWine and Mayor Nan Whaley are both attending. Videos 
are available on MORPC’s YouTube site. Mr. Murdock is proud of Joe Garrity, Níel Jurist, Amanda 
McEldowney and their teams for pulling the event together. 
 
The Intel project moves along. President Biden and Governor DeWine are attending the groundbreaking 
for the Intel site tomorrow. MORPC continues to work with the Governor’s Office. MORPC is excited to 
continue helping communities and partners prepare for the challenges. Great work is happening in 
Licking County, New Albany and across the region. MORPC is hosting a series of forums throughout the 
year. The next forum focuses on sustainability and includes an overview of regional sustainability 
programs and a best practices panel in preparation for the expected growth and development across the 
region. Panelists include Jennifer Fish, Franklin County Soil and Water Conservation District; Michael 
Bongiorno, AECOM; and Christina O’Keeffe, Ohio Air Quality Development Authority. 

 
The Summit on Sustainability is October 14. Registration is open for the event that looks at sustainability 
through the lens of local government. It is also a great opportunity to learn more about the funding from 
the bipartisan infrastructure bill. 
 
Planning Together Local Governments & Schools is September 29, 11:30 a.m. at MORPC. Dr. Jeff 
Vincent from the University of California will talk about his research on different strategies for school 
districts and local governments to work together. Educational Service Center of Central Ohio Director 
Tom Goodney will also speak. (Post meeting update: this event was postponed.) 
 
Other upcoming events: 

• Southwest Regional Collaboration Meeting – September 27, Prairie Township, Galloway 

• Rural Forum Series: Hometown Revitalizations Happen Here – October 27, Bellefontaine 

 
Each month this fall Mr. Murdock will highlight one of the pillars of MORPC’s Strategic Framework. 
Today he is focusing on Drive Investment: Retooling Our Approach. The 2022 Strategic Framework 
Pillars are: 

• Pay it Forward 

• Create an Environment for Prosperity 

• Build Value for Members 

• Drive Investment 
 
Due to historic federal investment, the Intel project, Investment in Appalachia, an employee departure, 
and feedback from members, we are realigning the drive investment pillar to make sure we are investing 
in the region’s infrastructure. Earlier this year we hired a grants officer. That position has turned over and 
a lot has changed since then. The realignment provides more technical assistance to members and 
helps us be more proactive and strategic in competing for investment. Instead of replacing the Grants 
Officer, two new positions will be created. The Regional Investment Officer will serve under Government 
Affairs but work closely with the Development Team. The Regional Investment Officer is advocacy driven 
and will identify funding opportunities, provide targeted communications to members, etc. The Grants 
Coordinator will serve under Development and is technically driven providing technical skills, procuring 
services, etc. We also want to be aligned with the business community.  
 
 

https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-Retooling-Drive-Investment.pdf


Commission Minutes 

September 8, 2022 

Page 4 

 
Proposed Resolution 13-22 – “Accepting the Village of New Lexington as a member of the Mid-
Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC)” – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 
David Scheffler made a motion to approve Resolution 13-22, second by Ben Kessler; motion passed. 
  

Committees 
 

Regional Data Advisory Committee – Brad Ebersole (Delaware County), Regional Data Advisory 
Committee Chair 
Brad Ebersole gave the Regional Data Advisory Committee Update. The mission of the Regional Data 
Advisory Committee (RDAC) advances data policies and strategic actions to increase access to open 
data in Central Ohio. RDAC has three working groups: Capacity Building and Partnerships, Local 
Government Resources, and Regional Municipal Fiber Strategy.  
 
The Capacity Building and Partnerships Working Group is postponing Data Day in order to partner with 
Ohio University in March.  
 
The Regional Municipal Fiber Strategy Working Group continues to work with the City of Columbus to 
strategically find ways to maximize the use of available federal funding in a way that can be 
advantageous to everyone in the region.  
 
The Local Government Resources Working Group is creating a data governance resource library. The 
library is a hub for best practices, templates, reference materials, policy frameworks, etc. The resource 
hub and intake form will soon be available on MORPC’s website. If you have questions or want to learn 
more, reach out to Jennifer Noll at MORPC. 
 
With Jung Kim leaving One Columbus and RDAC, we are excited to announce that Jay Knox, the 
Director of Client Research with One Columbus, has agreed to join us as a board member. There are still 
openings on the board as well as on the working groups. Reach out to Mr. Ebersole or Kerstin Carr if 
you, or anyone on your team, are interested. 
 
Regional Policy Roundtable – David Scheffler (City of Lancaster), Regional Policy Roundtable 
Chair 
David Scheffler presented the Regional Policy Roundtable Update. As stated previously, MORPC hosted 
the Candidates Forum in coordination with the Ohio Association of Regional Councils. It was an 
opportunity to hear both candidates answer the same questions. There were also several interesting and 
valuable panels on economic development.  
 
The 2023-2024 Public Policy Agenda Working Group, chaired by Lourdes Barroso de Padilla, begins 
meeting next week. The agenda is a central document that states MORPC’s state and federal policy for 
the next two years. The Working Group will meet three times over the next three months. See Joe Garrity 
if interested in serving on the Working Group. 
   

• Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter and Joseph Garrity, MORPC 
Senior Director of Government Affairs & Community Engagement 
Joe Garrity and Steve Tugend gave the legislative update highlighting the following: 

o President Biden Visit 
o Former President Trump Visit 
o Reconciliation bill 
o Fall Federal Priorities 

https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-RDAC.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-RPR.pdf


Commission Minutes 

September 8, 2022 

Page 5 

 
o Central Ohio Defense Group 
o National Guard Annual Conference (NGAUS) 
o Lame Duck Session 

 
The State is looking at three things for the ARPA funds: affordable housing, sewer/water, and 
foodbanks. 

 
MORPC sent out the following policy briefs to members: 

o CHIPS and Science Act of 2022 
o Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 

 
Sustainability Advisory Committee – Ben Kessler (City of Bexley), Sustainability Advisory 
Committee Chair 
Ben Kessler presented the Sustainability Advisory Committee Report. As mentioned earlier, MORPC’s 
annual Summit on Sustainability is October 14 at the Hilton Columbus Downtown. The Summit brings 
community leaders together to explore and share sustainable ideas and solutions, and to celebrate 
individuals and collaborative sustainability efforts with the Regional Sustainability Awards. We encourage 
communities across Central Ohio to attend and support this event. More information is available at 
morpc.org/summit.  
 
Mayor Kessler congratulated the City of Hilliard for recently earning Bronze SolSmart Designation. 
SolSmart is a free technical assistance and designation program run by the U.S. Department of Energy 
that encourages local governments to promote solar energy growth by addressing soft cost barriers, 
focusing primarily on permitting & inspection, planning & zoning, government operations, and community 
engagement. Contact Brian Filiatraut if interested.  
 
The next Sustainable2050 meeting is September 16. MORPC is working on a sustainability toolkit for our 
local governments. Reach out if you have any requests or suggestions. The next Sustainability Advisory 
Committee meeting is September 29.   
 

• Trail Town Update – Kerstin Carr, MORPC Chief Regional Strategy Officer & Senior 
Director of Planning 
Kerstin Carr provided an update on the Trail Town Framework. Over the past nine months, 
MORPC has worked with a team of consultants to develop a framework for a trail town 
designation program that will celebrate our trails and identify opportunities for economic and 
recreational development along the trails. Amy Camp is the main consultant. The consultants 
worked with four partners on the Ohio to Erie Trail (the Cities of London, Sunbury, Centerburg 
and Mount Vernon) to understand how residents, businesses and trail users feel about the trails 
and the towns. The consultants used the information gathered as a foundation to develop a 
blueprint to implement the regional designation program in which communities can apply to be 
part of a shared marketing and communications strategy encouraging trail use. The goal is to 
replicate the framework statewide. The full document will be available later this month on 
centralohiogreenways.com. 
 
In the meantime, MORPC will continue to partner with stakeholders like Rails-to-Trails 
Conservancy and Experience Columbus on events and programs promoting/celebrating trails. 
The Columbus Foundation provided funding to continue the trail town work to bring it to the urban 
area and the Ohio Department of Transportation provided a $200,000 grant to develop a regional 
wayfinding strategy.  

https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/CHIPS-and-Science-Act-of-2022-1.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/Inflation-Reduction-Act-of-2022-1.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-SAC.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/event/summit-on-sustainability/
https://www.morpc.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/09-08-2022-Trail-Town.pdf
http://centralohiogreenways.com/


Commission Minutes 

September 8, 2022 

Page 6 

 
Dr. Carr announced that RAPID 5 received their IRS designation and are now officially a 501(C)3 
organization. There are ongoing conversations regarding how RAPID 5 might be the framework 
or umbrella organization that helps move large transformational projects. 

 
Transportation Policy Committee – Erik Janas (Franklin County), MORPC Chair 
Chair Janas called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:22 p.m. The session 
adjourned at 2:34 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 
Commission Consent Agenda 
Karen Angelou made a motion to approve the Commission Consent Agenda, second by Steve Schoeny, 
motion passed.  
 
Other Business 
Tom Homan thanked and recognized MORPC and the other communities that provided funding and 
assistance for the International City Council Management Association (ICMA) Conference. 
 
Chair Janas congratulated Chris Amorose Groomes on being added to the Dublin City Schools Hall of 
Fame. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
Michelle Crandall, Secretary 
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 




